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LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(A whially-cwned subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

{in Phdippine Peso)
Retained Earnings Accumulsted
Other
Share Capital  Appropriated Unappropriated Comprahans e
. » {Mote 18] {Mate 20b) [MNobe 208 and &) Ingome TOTAL
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2022 J0:0,000,000 522,207,008 499,837,682 i} 1,312,044 590
CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2022
AddiDeduct)
Declaration of Cash Dwidana {95 474, 244) {06 474 244)
Approprialions 103,363 438 (103,363, 438) ]
Reversal of Approgriations {10,000 000 10, 00,000 v}
Chibwar adustmenis (340.379) {340 375)
Med Income for the year 251,245 354 251 245 154
Remeasurement gasn on retirement benefit obligation (Mole 26 2 it 2 E01,188 2,801,169
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 300,000,000 615,570,446 550,904,975 2,801,159 1,469,276, 590
BALAMCE AT JANUARY 1, 2023 300,000,060 615 570 446 550,904,975 2,801,159 1,469 276,590
CHANGES IM EQUITY FOR 2023
Addi(Deduct)
Declaration of Cash Dradend (151 804 D34} (151 604 034)
Fees and commisson rfund adjusimants {85, 128 D04) (65,128 094)
Othesr adjustments 1,872 297 1,972 297
Mﬁﬁmumy! of incsdental charges relabed 1o fees and commission 51 053 288 51 053 286
Mat Income for the year 188,026 DAS 166,026 D&S
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2023 300,000, G0 615,570,446 553,224,519 & 801,169 1,471,556 134

The Males on pages 9 fo 58 form part of these financial sialemants




LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

{In Philippine Peso)

Hote 2023 2012
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Receipt of Advance Payment of Premium 1.473,792.371 1 408 313 161
Collection of Income/Revenua 27.598 323 12,042 144
Collection of Receivables 356,822 867 255,984 008
___Tutll Cash Inflows : 1,858,213,561 1,676,339,313
Cash Qutflows
Payment of Premiums to Insurance Companies (1.004 214 773) {1,314, 066 583)
Payment of Expenses (111,529, 964) (86,397 .720)
Purchase of Inventories [ (650 BGT) (802 B70)
Grant of Cash Advances (55, 000 0
Prepayments (10,307 431} (8,889 777)
Payments of Accounts Payable {10,348 685) (21,391 .422)
Remittance of Personnel Benefit and Mandatory Deduction (5,188 985 (4,062,328)
Payment of Income Taxes (86 300,427 (73,297 376)
Total Cash Outflows (1,228,505,162) (1,508,707, B7T6)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 629,708,399 167,621,437
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Proceeds of Matured Investments 8,535 216,000 5,534 682 988
__Receipt of Interest Earned from Investments 61,295 504 42 687,306
Total Cash Inflows 6,596,511,504 5577370,294
Cash Outflows
Furchase of Property, Plant, Equipment 11 (934 821) (1.601.817)
Construction in Progress - Building/Office renavation 11 (2.631,222) 0
Furchase of Intangible Assets 12 ¥ (2,506.824)
Placemant of lnvestmeants (6,848 077 809) (&, 70E,953,6559)
Total Cash Outflows (6,851,243 852) (6,712,062 300)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (254,732,3248) (135,692,006)
CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
Payment of Cash Dwidends 20a {151,604 034) (96 474 244)
Cash Used in Finan:iﬂg Activities (151,604,034) (96,474, 244)
Het Increasel{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 223372017 (64,534,813)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 235,637,099 300,171,812
5 459,009,116 235637099

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMEER 31

The Notes on pages 9 o 58 forrm part of these financial stalernanis
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LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Al amounts in Philippine Peso, unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (LIBl or the “Corporation’) was organized as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) on October 22, 1981 under Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) Registration No. 105764. On May 16, 1983, its Artices of
Incorporation was amended increasing the number of directors of the Board from nine to 11.
This was further amended on October 17, 1994 increasing the LIBI's authorized capital stock
from P20,000.000 to P300.000,000 and revising its secondary purpose.

It was created primarily for the purpose of engaging in the business of general insurance
brokerage management and consultancy more particularly as folows:

e To act as insurance broker for life, health, accident, motor car, casualty, surety and
fidelity, marine cargo and hull, comprehensive liability insurance and other insurance
coverage allied with and incident to the above-mentioned lines, and

 To engage in management and consultancy work on insurance and in this
connection, to hold, own, purchase, acquire, underwrite, obtain participation in, and
manage the business of any corporation, partnership or equity.

The LIBI's registered and principal office of business is located at the 12" Floor SSHG Law
Centre Building, 105 Paseo de Roxas St., Legaspi Village, Makati City.

2, STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS/PHILIPPINE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards/Philippine Accounting Standards [PFRSs/PASs).

The financial statements of LIBI for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 12, 2024 in Board Resolution No.
2024-003-010 dated February 12, 2024 and was signed by the Chairman of the Board on
February 12, 2024,

3. NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS

3.7 New standards and amendmenls issued and effective for annual periods beginning on or

after January 1, 2023.

e PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure of
Accounting Policies. The amendments require that an entity discloses its material



3.2

accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies. Further
amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy.

e PAS 8 (Amendments), Accounting Estimates — Definition of Accounting Estimates.
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty.

e PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from Single Transaction. The amendments clarify that the initial
recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of
deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial recognition.

¢ PFRS 17 (Amendments), Insurance Contracts — requires liabilities to be measured
at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed
to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance
contracts. PFRS 17 supersedes PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of January 01,
2023.

LIBI adopted and applied these amendments in the preparation of these financial
statements. The adoption of these amendments did not have material impact in the
amounts and disclosures reported in these financial statements.

LIBI adopted PFRS 15, which establishes the principles that an entity shall apply when
reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a
customer. Recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. With the application of PFRS 15, there
was a material impact on LIBI's Financial Statements. The fees and commission income
derived from the Credit Life Insurance (CLI) were amortized over the term of the loan
thereby reducing the fees and commission recorded for CY2023 which affected the Net
Income for the year. There was also a significant amount of Deferred Tax Asset
recorded as a consequence of the recording of Unearned Fees and Commission
Income.

New standards and amendments effective after the reporting period ended December
31, 2023.

¢ Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, Non-Current
Liabilities with Covenants (effective January 1, 2024) — To clarify how condilions
with which entity must comply within the twelve months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability.

¢« Amendments to PFRS 16 Leases, Lease Liabilty in a Sale and Leaseback
(Effective January 1, 2024) - The amendment requires a seller-lessee to
subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it does
not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.



The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognizing in profit or
loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease.

® PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Supplier-Finance Arrangements (Effective January 1, 2025) -
The amendments address disclosure requirements o enhance the transparency of
supplier finance arrangements and their effects on a company’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk.

The LIBI is currently assessing the impact of these new accounting standarc and
amendments,

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statemenis are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied lo both years presented unless
otherwise stated.

4.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The LIBI's financial statements have been prepared on historical cost except for investments in
government securities which are stated at amortized cost using effective interest method. The
financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with PFRSs.

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the LIBI's functional and
presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
indicated.

4.2 Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standard
(PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Corporation presents all items of income
and expenses in a single-step statement of comprehensive income. The Corporation presents
its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. Analysis regarding recovery
(asset) or settlement (liability) within 12 months after the statement of financial position date
(current) and more than 12 months afier the statement of financlal position date (non-current) is
presented in Note 32 of the financial statements.

Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The LIBI presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on current
and noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is: (a) expected to be realized or
intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; (b) held primarily for the
purpose of rading; (c) expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period, or (d)

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting perod.

A liability is current when it is: (a) expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; (b) held
primarily for trading; (c) due to be setted within 12 months after the reporting period; or (d] there
is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.



The LIBI classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurent. Deferred tax assets are
classified as noncurrent.

4.3 Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in the most
appropriate application of the accounting policies. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are
recognized in the period in which judgements and estimates are revised and in any future period
affected. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing
the financial statements and their effects are disclosed in Notes 4.13 and 4.14.

4.4 Financial Instruments

LIBI recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a. Financial Assets

Under PFRS 9, the classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and business model for managing
the financial assets. As part of its classification process, LIBI assesses the contractual terms of
financial assets to identify whether they meet the “solely payments of principal and interest”
(SPPI) test. The “Principal”, for the purpose of this test, is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g., if
there are repayments of principal or amortization of the premium or discount).

In determining the business model at the level that best reflects how the Corporation manages
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective, the LIBl has adopted the Hold-to-
Collect Business Model per Board Resolution No. 2019-012-041.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized initialy at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
given. The initial measurement of financial assets, except for those designated at fair value
through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost. The LIBI determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Classification

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within the company’'s business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

® The contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.



The LIBI's financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents and
investments.

Investmenis

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as investments when the LIBlI has the positive intention and ability to held it to
maturity.

Investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

LIBl's existing policy is to invest excess funds in government securities (GS) becauss the
servicing and repayments are fully guaranteed by the National Government. The Corporation’'s

investments in financial instruments like GS - Fixed Treasury Notes and Retail Treasury Bonds
are stated at amortized cost

Subsequent measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The LIBI derecognizes instruments or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
LIBI of similar financial assets when:

L 12 The contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; and

2. The LIBI has transferred its contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, or retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients and
either the entity has:

* Transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, or

¢ Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset but has transferred the control of the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The LIBI records the allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for financial assets not held at
FVPL, all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment
under PFRS 9.



Under the expected loss methodology, impairment is more forward looking, in that a credit event
(or impairment ‘trigger’) no longer has to occur before credt losses are recognized. ECL

represents credit losses that reflect an unbiased and probability- weighted amount, which is
datermined by ewvaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time wvalue of money and

reasonable and supportable information about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions. ECL allowances will be measured at amounts equal to either:

i.  12-month ECL
ii. Lifetime ECL for those financial instruments that have experienced a Signfficant
Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) since initial recognition (General approach).

The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial

instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are

credit losses that results from all possible default events over the expected life of financial
instrument.

Staging assessment
For no-credit-impaired financial instruments:

e Stage 1 is comprised of all financial instruments which have not experienced a SICR
since initial recognition or is considered of low credit risk as of the reporting date.
The criteria for determining whether an account shculd be assessed under stage 1
are as follows:

* Past due up to 30 days
* No significant increase in Probability of Default (PD)

The LIBI recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial instruments.

¢ Stage 2 is comprised of all financial instruments which have experienced a SICR
since its initial recognition. A SICR is generally deemed present in accounts with:

* More than 30 days up to 90 days past due, or
*  With significant increase in PD.

The LIBI recognizes a lifetme ECL for Stage 2 financial instruments.

For credit-impaired financial instruments:

* Stage 3 is comprised of financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with

a negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or portfolio of loans.
The LIBI recognizes a lifetime ECL for stage 3 financial instruments.

PFRS 9 Loss events:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower




® A breach of contract, such as default or past due event

¢ The Lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating 1o the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider

® |t is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization

® The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties

¢ The purchase of origination of a financial asset at deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses

ECL parameters and methodologies

ECL is a function of the PD, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure At Default (EAD), with the
timing of loss also considered, and is estimated by incorporating forward-looking economic
information and through the use of experience credit judgement.

The PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over 12-month horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime
horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual instrument is modelled based on historical data

and is estimated based on current market conditions and reasonable and supportable
information about future economic conditions.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from any
collateral.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,
and expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

Forward Looking Information

The LIBI incorporated forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit
risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement
of ECL. A broad range of forward-locking information are considered as economic inputs, such
as GDP growth, exchange rate, interest rate, inflation rate and other economic indicators. The
inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the
market at the date of financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays
are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly
material.

b. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The LIBI's financial liabilities include insurancefreinsurance premium payable, accounts
payable, due to officers and employees, other financial liabilities - handling fee payable.



Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability expires or is
diecharged or cancelled.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liabilty and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

4.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash in bank, deposits on call and

highly liguid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible o known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.6 Accounts Receivables

LIBI acts as an agent in placing the insurable risks of its clients with insurers and as such is not
liable as principal for amounts arising from such transactions. However, Accounts Receivables
(Premium Receivables) were recognized upon issuance of the Statement of Accounts. Accrual
service fees from accredited insurers are based on premium production.

To faidy present the net realizable value of Accrued Service Fees Receivable and
Other Receivables, allowances for impairment have been provided. The allowances

were then determined based on the aging schedule multiplied by the rate or per cent of
loss experienced by LIBI.

4.7 Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory is
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the
cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Inventories are

recognized as an expense when consumed in the ordinary course of operations of the
LIEI.

48 Investment Property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met
and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured using the cost model and is depreciated over its estimated useful
life and less any impairment in value.

Investment property is derecognized at disposal or when permanently withdrawn from






use and no future economic benefit or service potential is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in the
use,

4.9  Property and Equipment
Recognition

An item is recognized as property and equipment (PE) f it meets the characteristics
and recognition criteria as PE.

The characteristics of PE are as follows:

a. Tangible items;

b. Held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes; and

. Expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

An item of PE is recognized as an asset if:

a. It is probable that future economic benefits or associated with the item will flow
to the entity; and

b. The cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably; and cost is at as
least P50,000

Measurement at initial recognition

An item recognized as property and equipment is measured at cost. A PE acquired
through non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value.

Cost includes the following:

a. Purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates;

b. Expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items; and

C. Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site of which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either
when the item is acquired, or as a consequence of having used the item during
a particular pericd for the purposes other than to produce inventories during the
period.

Subsequent Measurement

After recognition, all PE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumnulated impairment losses.

When significant parts of PE are required to be replaced at intervals, LIBI recognizes



such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major repair/replacement is done, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the PE as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied.

Depreciation

Each part of an item of PE with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item is depreciated separataly.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognized as expense unless it is included
in the cost of another asset.

a. Initial recognition of depreciation

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use such as when it is in

the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of the manner intended
by management.

For simplicity and to avoid proportionate computation, the depreciation is for
one month if the PE is available for use on or before the 15th of the maonth.
However, if the PE is available for use after the 15th of the month, deprecizstion

will start on the succeeding month.
b. Depreciation Method

The straight-line method of depreciation is adopted.

i. Estimated useful life

The LIBI uses the life span of PE prescribed by the Commission on Audit in

determining the specific estimated useful life for each asset based on its
experience as follows:

Property and Equipment MNumber of Years
Building == = 50
Information Technology 5
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 9
Motor Vehicle 7

ii. Residual Value

The LIBI uses a residual value equivalent to at least five per cent of the cost of
the PE.

Impairment
An asset's carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount, or recoverable

service amount, if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount or recoverable service amount.

10



Derecognition

The LIBI derecognizes items of PE and/or any significant part of an asset upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its
continuing use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

410 Other Assets

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash.
Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at cost. Subsequently,
these are charged to statements of comprehensive income as they are consumed in
operations or as they expire with the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statement of financial position as current assets and
expected to be incurred within one year, otherwise, prepayments are classified as non-
current assets.

Other assets pertain to expenditures which have future economic benefits and are not
identified as financial assets, prepayments, or equipment. These are classified as
current in the statements of financial position because the benefit from such assets are
expected to be realized within one year from the financial reporting date, otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

411 Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when the items are identifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substance; it is probable that the expected future economic benefiis or
service potential that are attributable to the assets will flow to the entity; and the cost or
fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost.

If payment for an intangible asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the
cash price equivalent. The difference between this amount and the total paymenis is
recognized as interest expense over the period of credit unless it is capitalized in
accordance with the capitalization treatment permitted in PAS 23, Borrowing Cost

Recognition of an expense
Expenditure on an intangible item is recognized when it is incurred unless it forms part
of the cost of an intangible asset that meets the recognition criteria of an intangible

asset.

Subsequent measurement

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

11



Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized over their useful lives.

The straight-line method is adopted in the amortization of the expected pattern of
consumption of the expected future economic benefits or service potential.

An irtangible asset not yet available for use is assessed for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method, for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on an intangible asset with a finite life is recognized in the statements of

comprehensive income as the expense category that is consistent with the naturs of
the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

412 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets
a. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when (1) the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; (2) it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation; and (3) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the LIBI expects some or all a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense pertaining to any provision is presented in the statements of
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate, If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions are
reversed.

b. Contingent Liabilities
The LIBI does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

c. Contingent Assets
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The LIBI does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible
asset whose existence is confingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the LIBI in the notes to the
financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can
be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial
statements on the period in which the change occurs.

4.13 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates

The LIBI recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

LIBI recognizes the material effects of changes in accounting estimates prospectively
through the statements of comprehensive income.

a. The period of the change, if the change affects that period only;

b. The period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both.

The LIBI corrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial
statements authonzed for issue after their discovery by:

a. Reslating the comparaiive amounts for prior period(s) presented in which the
error occurmred; or
b. If the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the

opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets/equity for the earliest prior
period presented.

With the adoption and implemantation of PFRS 15 effective year 2023, it requires the
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policy and the amounts of assets, liabilites, income and
expenses reported in the financial statements at the reporting date. The estimates,
assumptions and judgments are based on the management's evaluation of relevant
facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. However,
uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in an
outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected
asset or liability on the first adcption and implementation and in the future.

4.14 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The core principle is that an entity

recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in

13



exchange for those goods or services. The standard focuses on the identification of
perfarmance obligations and distinguishes between performance obligations that are
satisfied at a point in time and those that are satisfied over time, which is determined
by the manner in which control of goods or services passes to the customer. The
Corporation must apply the five-step model to comply with the revenue recognition
standard:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customers

Step 2: Define the performance obligations in each contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Corporation satisfies a
performance obligation

The amendments on PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, clarifies how
entities:

a. ldentify a performance obligation—the promise to transfer a good or a
service to a customer—in a contract;

b. Determine whether a company is a principal (the provider of a good or
service) or an agent responsible for arranging for the good or service to be
provided; and

c. Determine whether the revenue from granting a license should be
recognized at a point in time or over time.

LIBI assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as
an agent. The Corporation has assessed that it acts as an agent in all of its revenue
sources. The LIBI's existing brokerage agreements with the accredited insurance
companies of its parent, LBP, aims to provide accessible, competitively priced, and
responsive insurance services and to efficiently facilitate processing of insurance
requirements of all LBP clients and direct individuals. Transaction price varies per line
of insurance risks. The LIBI recognizes revenue as the brokering services and
issuance of policies by the insurers are rendered at a point in time for non-life
insurance policies.

In the adoption of PFRS 15, the LIBI implemented the recognition of Fees and
Commission Income (FCI) derived from Credit Life Insurance (CLI) premiums by
recording FCI applicable for the first year and the rest of the FCI will be amortized
based on the remaining term of the loan.

The LIBI Board under Resolution No. 2023-020-072 dated MNovember 30, 2023
approved the adoption and implementation of COA Circular No. 2023-009 -
Implementation of PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. With its first year
of adoption and implementation, LIB! adjusted the FCI from the CLI premium
production for 2023 by recording Unearmed Fees and Commission Income and
reversed the FCI pertaining to succeeding years. The details are presented in the table
below:

CY2023
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FONEEE e FCI
g F CY2023 |  CYs 2024-2027 Total

1,049,030,041 | 62,461,034 217,812,603 280,273,637

To facilitate a more straightforward implementation, the management proposed a

simplified amortization process by evenly distributing the CLI fees and commission
over the term of the loan.

As a result of the implementation of PFRS 15 in CY 2023, total income declined
significantly and had a material impact of the Net Income for 2023,

415 Leases

PFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize all leases on their statements of financial
position except for relatively emall-value assets and leases with terms of 12 months or
less. This single accounting model no longer distinguishes a finance lease from an
operating lease. Under its core principle, a lessee recognizes a right-of-use (ROU)
asset and alease liability on its balance sheet for mostleases, including
operating leases.

Leases, where the Corporation does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets, are classified as operating leases.

4.16 Income Taxes

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current tax only. Income tax is
recognized in the profit or loss. Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year using tax rates enacied or substantially enacied as of the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable with respect to previous years.

Deferred Tax Asset refers to tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities. It is measured using the tax rate
applicable to taxable income in the year in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recorded or settled. Deferred Tax Asset is recognized to the extent of
the realization of the related Income Tax Benefit through future taxable income.

417 Retirement Benefits

In compliance with the provisions of the Retirement Law [Republic Act (R.A.) No. 7641],
which requires corporations to provide retirement benefits for their employees, and the
National Internal Revenue Ccde (R.A. No. 8424), which allows tax deductibility of
employer's contributions for the retirement benefits of its employees, LIBI has
established a retirement fund pursuant to Board Resolution No. 2010-006-012 dated

July 30, 2010.
a. Retirement benefit obligations
The LIBI retirement benefit plan is a defined benefit plan and is non-contributory,

covering all its officers and regular employees. The net defined benefit liability or asset
is the aggregate of the present value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of
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limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined
using the projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

» Service cost
» Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
* Re-measuremenis of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or
losses on non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past
service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is
determined by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the defined
benefit liability or asset.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or
income in profit or loss. Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses,
return on plan assets and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net
interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods. All re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive
income account "Re-measurement gains (losses) on retirement plan® are not
reclassified to another equity account in subsequent periods.

FPlan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying
insurance policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Corporation, nor
can they be paid directly to the Corporation. Fair value of plan assets is based on
market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan
assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate
that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the
settlement of the related obligations).

The Corporation's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to

settle a defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when
and only when reimbursement is virtually certain.

Characteristics and funding
The LIBI has a funded non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan)

covering substantially all of ils officers and regular employees. Under the Plan, all
covered officers and employees are entitled to cash benefits after satisfying certain age
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and service requirements. The retirement plan provides retirement benefits (equivalent
to 22.5 days pay for every year of service) after satisfying certain age and service
reguirements.

The set-up of Retirement Fund Liability was approved by the Board of Directors on
September 01, 2010 per Board Resolution No. 2010-007-013.

LIBI appropriated its Retained Eamings from 2000 to 2008 a total amouni of
P10,000,000 for retirement benefit plan. On July 18, 2011, the Retirement Fund was
finally set-up by LIBI of which the LBP-Trust Banking Group (LBP-TBG) was appointed
as Trustee of the fund. LIBI treated this fund as off-book in accordance with PAS 26,
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plan. The monitoring of this Fund
would be done by the LIBI Administrative Head, which would be checked periodically
by the Accounting Head.

Actuarial assumptions

LIBI engaged the services of a duly certified independent actuarial firm to do actuarial
valuation of LIBI's plan assets and present value of its defined benefit obligation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method and in accordance with the provisions of PAS 19, as
revised (PAS 19R).

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as of December 31, 2022. No actuarial valuation made for year
2023 since there was no response yet from the GCG regarding the joint letter request
for clarification on the Retirement Benefit Plans of LBP Subsidiaries emailed to GCG
on May 23, 2023 with a follow-up letter dated January 10, 2024.

The valuation results were based on the employee data as of the valuation dates
provided by the LIBI to the independent actuarial firm.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the statements of financial position date
follows:

December 31, 2022 January 01, 2022

Discount rate 7.10% 4.90%

Salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality rate 2017 Philippine 2017 Philippine Intercompany
Intercompany Mortality  Mortality Table
Table

Disability rate 2013 SSS Total Disability 2013 S5S Total Disability
Table Table

Turnover Table A range of rates starting A range of rates starting with

MNormal retirement age
Projected retirement credit

with 10% annum for a new
hire progressing to a 1% tail
rate

60
22.5 days pay per year of

10% annum for a new hire
progressing to a 1% tail rate

60
22.5 days pay per year of
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service
Projected unit credit method
Lump sum

Actuaral cost method
Manner of benefit payment

service

Projected unit credit method
Lump sum

The summary of valuation results as at the statements of financial position date follows:

December 31, 2022

January 01, 2022

‘Number of employees 55 57
Average age in years 38.9 38.4
Average years of past service 9.8 9.2
Average Expected Future Service 13.7 13.8
Totzl Annual Salary0 26,156,388 26,999172
Present value of defined benefit obligation 16,515,088 0
Current service cost 1,697,562 0
Met Interest Cost (Income) (121,917) 0
Fair value of plan assets 20,228,719 0000
Deficit / (Surplus) (3,713.631) 0
Contributions 0 0
Benefits paid from plan assets 1,202,805 0

Reccnciliation of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

Defined Benefit Fair Vale of Net Defined
Obligation Plan Assets Liability
Balance, January 1 2,709,420 0 2,109,420
Opening balance adjustment 16,805,601 (21.403,128) (4,597.527)
Adjusted balance, January 1 18,915,021 (21,403,128) (2,488,107)
Service cost-current 1,697 562 0 1,697 562
Interest cost (income) 926,836 (1,048,753) (121,917)

Included in Retained Earnings adjustment 2,624,398 (1,048,753) 1,575,645

Re-measurement loss(gain)

a. (Gain) loss on defined benefit obligation from

changes in:
®  Financial assumptions (3,092,668) 0 (3,092,668)
e  Demographic assumptions 0 0 U
®  Due to Experience (908,858) 0 (908,858
b. Refurn on plan assets, excluding interest income 0 1,200,357 1,200,357

Included in other comprehensive income (4,001,526) 1,200,357 (2,801,169)

Employer contributions 0 0 0

Withdrawals- benefit paid in 2022 (1,022,805) 1,022 805 0

Other movements (1,022,805) 1,022,805 0

Balarce, December 31 16,515,088 (20,228,719) (3,713,631)
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Allocation of Plan Assels

Cash and cash equivalents 2, B54 166 _11:E

Government securities 17,414,363 86.1%
_Miscellam;-::;s reﬂeTiv_ables | 2177 0%

Trust Fee payables (41,986) 0.2%
Plan Assets 20,228,719 | 100.00%

The Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using
the mark-to-market valuation. While no significant changes in asset allocation are
expected in the next financial year, the Retirement Plan Trustee may make changes at
any time.,

Maturity Profile and Maturity Benefit Analysis

The expected benefit stream considers plan benefits, increase in ages, service years,
and salaries of the current plan participants as well as the assumed probability tables.
The past and future service years were factored in the calculations.

a) Maturity Profile: Expected benefit Cash Flow

a Year 1 4,935,351
b Year 2 404 869
c Year 3 1,326,895
d. Year 4 3.126.975
e Year 5 1,834,937
f. Year 6-10 10,023,498
ag. Year 11-20 21,959,098
h. Year 21-30 42,183,182
I Year 31-40 0
b) Maturity Benefit Analysis

a. Actuarial Present Value of Benefits * 28,635,930

b. Vested Benefit ** 19,918,485

c. Macaulay Duration ™" 12:1

*Actuarial Present Value of Benefits is the present value of expected
benefits after reflecting the time value of money.
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** Vested Benefit is the estimated amount the Company needs lo
pay if all the employees voluntarily resigned or retired as of the
valuation date.

*** Macaulay duration is the weighted average of maturity tenors
with weights equal to present value of expected cash flow. This Is a
key melric in the implementation of assel-liability matching and
liability driven investment strategies.

Sensitivity Analysis

This schedule shows the impact in key actuarial assumptions on the present value of
defined benefit obligation. Each Sensitivity run is based on a change in a sole actuarial
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. However, the sensitivity runs
may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that a change in assumption would occur in isolation as the assumptions may
be correlated. Furthermore, defined benefit obligation figures in these sensitivity runs
have been calculated using the projected unit credit method, the same method used in
the calculation of defined benefit obligation.

Sensitivity Analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit Obligation Base Case from reconciliation of defined benefit obligation,
as shown in table below.

Amount

a. Discount Rate + 100bps - 15,415,578
b. Discount rate-100bps 1 T,?BQ,EEEi
c. Salary Rate +100bps 17,830,730,
d. Salary Rate — 100bps 15,364,600
e. Turnover Rate = 0% “IE,UE‘.-_',EEI:II
'f. Turmmover Rate*125% 16,600,693
'g. Turnover Rate*75 : 'i'ﬁ.ﬁid;'ﬁéﬂi
Percentage Change Relative to Base Case

a. Discount Rate + 100bps (7%)
b. Discount rate-100bps 8%
c. Salary Rate +100bps 8%
d. Salary Rate — 100bps (7%)
e. Turnover Rate = 0% e (3%)
f. Turnover Rate*125% 1%
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(1%)

ig. Turnover Rate*75 |
100 basis paints (bps) is equivalent to 1%

The refirement plan of the LIBI is exposed to both financial and demographic risks:
a. Liguidity risk: The inability to meet benefit obligation payout when due.

b. Interest rate risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
relatively sensitive and inversely related to the discount rate. If the discount
rate decreases, the defined benefit obligation increases.

€. Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is relatively
sensitive and directly related to future salary increases. If the accrual salary
increases in the future are higher than expected, then the defined benefit
obligation and benefits are higher.

The Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2023 prepared by LBP-TBG
showed the MNet Assets balance of the Retirement Fund amounting to P21,880,757.
The Net Assets balance is composed of Capital and Retained Earnings amounting to
P15,681,546 and P6,199,211, respectively, as at December 31, 2023.

b. Compensated absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of each reporting period. These are included
in “Leave Benefits Payable” account at the undiscounted amount that the LIB! expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

418 Related Parties

The parent, LBP, regards a related party as a person or an enlity with the ability to
exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the LIBI, or
vice versa.

A member of key management is regarded as a related party such as the corporate
secretary who is an employee of the parent, LBP.

Related party disclosures are shown in Note 31 of the financial statements.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2023 2022

Cashon Hand 50,000 50,000
Cash in Bank-Local Currency 354 249 344 235 587,099
Cash Equivalents 100,708,976 0
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Cash in Bank-Clients’ Monies
Total

4,000,796 ¢

459,009,116 235,637,099

The LIBI Board issued Board Resolutions No. 2021-018-090A and 2021-018-090B
which approved the opening of Client's Money account and the adoption of compliance
of the other provisions of Insurance Commission Circular 2021-65.

The clients’ money account was successfully opened in LBP-MBC Ayala Branch and
enrolled in the LBP weAccess facility in October 2023. However, online collections of
premium payments are still coursed through the LIBI's main account in LEP-MBC-Local
Currency Account because of the limitation of the defined Revised Chart of Account
(RCA) in LIBI's Integrated Insurance Business Sysiem (lIBS). Although the Cash in
Bank-Clients’ Monies account was already created as one of the subsidiary accounts of
the Cash in Bank-Local Currency-Ayala account, it is stil to be defined by the system
provider since there was no further sub-subsidiary ledgers defined for the subsidiary
account Cash in Bank-Local Currency-MBC Ayala account.

The clients’ monies are presented as part of the Customer's Deposit Payable,
Accounts Payable and Undistributed Collections account balances as at December 31,

2023.
Customer’'s Deposit Payable (Note 15) 90,817,036
Accounts Payable (Note 13) 35,224 438
Undistributed Collections (Note 18) 3,090,214
Total 129,131,688
6. RECEIVABLES
This account consists of:
2022
Current MNon-Current Total Current  Non-Current Total

Accounts Receivable 168,616,973 0 168616973 104982173 0 104,982173
Accrued Service Fees
Recevable 33,304,976 0 33304976 224449078 0 22444978
Allowance for Impairment-
Accrued Service Fees
Recewvable (11,152,830) 0 (11,152830) ({10,871,993) 0 (10,871,993}
MNet Value-Accrued Service
Fees Receivable 22,152,146 0 22152146 11572985 0 11,572,985
Commission Receivable from
Insurer T44 161 0 744 161 1,822,044 0 1,822 044
Interest Receivable 9,593,404 0 9,593 494 8,510,744 0 8,510,744
Inter-Agency Receivable

Due from-S55 3,600 0 3,600 232,768 0 232,768

Due from Parent Company 24 686,854 0 24636894 0 0 0
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Sub-total 225,797,268 0 225,797,268 127,120,714 0 127,120,714

Other Receivables

Receivable-Disallowances /
I{Charges 0 1,589,383 1,589,383 ] 1,591,783

Advances 55,000 0 55,000 0 0

Due from Officers and
employees 0,236 0 9,236 28,920 0

Sub-total 64,236 1,589,383 1,653,619 28920 1,591,783

1,591,783
0

28,920
1,620,703

Total 225,861,504 1,589,383 227,450,887 127,149,634 1,591,783 128,741,417

The LIBI Board of Directors approved under Board Resolution No. 2023-017-057B
dated September 28, 2023 to refund the unearned fees and commission income
deducted by the insurance gprovider from the CLI borrower's unexpired premium
refunds to the Branch Banking Sector of Land Bank together with the application of
PFRS 15 wherein the FCI for CL| premiums should be amortized based on the loan
term. The corresponding handling fees or other discounts previously remitted to the
parent, LBP, were adjusted accordingly based on the returned FCI and amortization of
FCI for CLI premiums that resulted to an over remittance of Other Financial Liabilities.
The over remittance was then recorded under Due from Parent account. The over
remittance will then be deducted in future remittances to LBP.

Accounts Receivable and Accrued Service Fees Receivable accounts include
outstanding premium receivable from the assured whose insurance policies have been
iIssued by insurance companies that are now under liquidation. Below is the
breakdown:

Insurance Company Premium Accrued Service Fee

Unexpiced Premium from Philippine Prudeatial Life Ins. (PPLICI) 40,876,291 9023 564

Long Cutstanding Receivable — Easy Home Loan (EHL) PPLICI 283,214 45,916

Long Cutstanding Receivable - Philippine Phoenix ---_-é35.1f3! 129,338

Total 41,797,678 9,198,418

Relative to the termination of LIBI's insurance business with PPLICI in September 2013
which the latter did not concur, the PPLICI filed a complaint on March 7, 2016, against
the LBP and LIBI to the Regional Trial Court (RTC) National Capital Judicial Region
Pasig City, Branch 155, dockeled as Civil Case No. 75133 for a sum of money relating
to unpaid premiums by LIBI from 2013 to 20186.

On February 11, 2022, the OGCC filed a Memorandum in the Civil Case No. 75133
praying for the dismissal of the instant complaint about Accounting and Damages for
lack of merit, and the ordering of the petitioner to pay LIBI Attorney's Fees and
Litigation Expenses of at least P250,000.00 plus the cost of suit. All parties have
already submitted their respective memorandum. Thus, the case was submitted for
Resolution/Decision of the Court. On October 4, 2022, the OGCC received the
favorable Decision, dated August 8, 2022, of the RTC National Capital Judicial Region
Pasig City, Branch 155 docketed as Civil Case No. 75133. Plaintiff PPLICI filed a
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Motion for Reconsideration of the August 8, 2022 Decision which was subsequently
denied by the RTC for lack of merit. There were no updates received yet from the

OGCC.

Reconciliation of carrying amounts of Allowance for Impairment - Accrued Service Fee

Receivable for CY 2023;

Particulars 2023 2022
At January 1 10,871,993 11,665,490
Provisions for the year (Note 25) 1,822,481 1,617,074
12,694,474 13,282,564
Adjustment:
Reversal of CY2021 and 2022 due to collections (1,541,644)
Reversal of CY 2021 due to collections 0 (2,410,571)
(1,541,644) (2,410,571)
At December 31 11,152,830 10,871,993
T. INVENTORIES
This account consists of inventeries held for consumption, namely:
2023 2022
Office supplies inventory 134,866 180,473
Accountable forms inventory 87,518 100,125
MNon-accountable forms 19,962 24,536
Semi-expendable — Office Equipment 0 28,212
Semi-expendable — Information and Technology 0 20,800
Equipment
Semi-expendable — Furniture and Fixtures 210,000 6,953
452,346 361,099
Reconciliation of carrying amounts:
2023 2022
Carrying Amount, January 1 361,099 229,044
Additions/Acquisitions during the year 559,897 658,635
Semi-expendable - Furniture and Fixtures 210,000 0
Consumption during the year (678,650) (483,857)

Adjustments due to reclassification of semi-
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expendable inventories 0 (42,723)
Carrying Amount, December 31 452 346 361,099
8. OTHER ASSETS
This account consists of:
2023 2022
Current Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total
Prepayments 21,972,919 410,187 22 383,106 21,232 686 365,799 21,598,485
Deposils 0 82 197 82,197 33,600 142 022 175,622
Total 21,972.919 492 384 22 465,303 21,266,286 507,821  21,774107

The prepayments consist of creditable withholding taxes, prepaid subscription-annual
licenses for computer software like Microsoft, Adobe Acrobat, prepaid registration,
zoom and cloud hosting; prepaid insurance, input tax and other prepayments like the
prepaid tax and brokers’ fee on invesiment placements, advertising and internet google

workspace subscription.

The deposits consist of a one-month deposit as required by LIBI's suppliers of services
for the subscription of internet, condominium dues and rental for print-all-you-can

printers.

9. INVESTMENTS

This account consists of held to maturity investments. Below is the summary of changes

in this account during the year:

As at December 31, 2023

Treasury Bills  Retail Treasury Fixed Treasury

DBP Tier Il Total

Bonds Notes

Balance, Jan. 1, 2023, at Par Value 53,461,893 853,038,000 419,150,000 75,000,000 1,400,649,893
Additional investment 79.462 253 50,000,000 0 0 129462253
Investment sold/collected (60,736,000) (69.480,000)  (30,000,000) (75,000,000) (235,216,000)
Total Investment at Par Value 72,188,146 833,558,000 389,150,000 0 1,294 896,146
Discount on Investment 0 0 (181,966) 0 (181,966)
Premium on Investment 78411 38,161,915 0 0 46,103,086
Allowance for Impairment, Jan. 1 0 0 0 (384,352)) (384,352)
Impairment loss reversal 0 0 0 384352 384357
Allowance for Impairment, Dec. 31 0 0 0 0 0
Balance, December 31, 2023 80,129,317 871,719,915 388,968,034 0 1,340,817,266
As at December 31, 2022 _
Treasury Bills Retail Treasury Fixed Treasury DBP Tier ll Total
Bonds Notes
Balance, Jan. 1, 2022, at Par Value 451,955,089 671,558,000 30,000,000 75,000,000 1228513,089
Additional investment 515,036,792 191,480,000 389,150,000 0 1,095,666,792
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Investment sold/callected (913,529,988) {10,000,000) 0 0 (923,529,988)

Total Investment at Par Value 53,461,893 853,038,000 419,150,000 75,000,000 1,400,649,893
Discount on Investment 0 0 (347,541) 0 (347 541)
LTSI O Nveatwisnt 6,535,592 40,234,082 _ R RN
Allowance for Impairment, Jan.1 0 0 0 (307 482) (307,482)
Impairment loss for the year 0 0 0 (76,870F6.870)
Allowance for Impairment, Dec. 31 0 0 0 (384,352) (384,352)
Balance, December 31, 2022 59,997,425 893,332,082 418,802,459 T4,615648 1,446,747,614

The current and non-current portion of the Investments are broken down as follows:

2023 2022
Current Non-Currant Total Current Non-Currant Total
Treasury Bill B0 129317 1] 80,129,317 59,987 425 1] 59,997,425
Retail Treasury Bonds 100,000,000 m1,7119.915 871,719,915 63,480,000 823,852 082 893,332,082
Fixed Traasury Notes 0 168,968,034 388,968,034 29972669 388 822,790 418,802,459
DEP Tier Il a0 0 1] 74 615,648 ] 74,615,648
Total N 180129317 1,160,687,949  1,340,817,266 234,072,742 1,212,674,872  1,446,747,614

The current portion pertains to the Treasury Bill of 175 days with an interest rate of
6.430 per cent to mature on May 8, 2024. The DBP Tier Il matured on November 20,
2023 and the allowance for impairment loss was reversed. The Retail -Treasury Bond
which was transferred to current in 2022 with an interest of 2.375 per cent will mature
on March 11, 2024.

Investments of LIBI carry interest rates at December 31 as follows:

2023 2022
Fistell Tresouiry Borids 4.3?5%‘3.500?5:%.?2:% %, 2.625% and 4.375%, 500% 3.250%, 2.
| | - 2.625% and 2.375%
DBP-Tierll 4.875% 4.875%
Fixed Treasury Notes 5.750%, 5.500% and 5.250% 5.750%, 5.500% and 5.250%
Treasury Bills 6.43% 4.36%

Total interest earned from the investments amounted to P61,584,129 and P42,529 727
for years 2023 and 2022, respectively, as disclosed in Note 21.

Board Resolution No. 2014-009-027 dated October 29, 2014 approved the request of
LBP Leasing and Finance Corporation (LLFC), for the assignment of LIBl's
P500,000,000 worth of govemment securities — Retail Treasury Bonds as partial
collateral for LLFC's existing short-term loan from LBP. The Deed of Assignment
(DOA) by way of security was executed on October 31, 2014 by and between LIBI and
LLFC. The DOA shall be irrevocable until the Line shall have been paid in full and shall
be subject to the terms and conditions of the contracts relative to the Line herein
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secured. Any release of the assigned Collateral or cancellation of this Assignment shall
be subject to the prior consent of the LIBI.

In consideration of the assignment, LLFC shall pay LIBI a guarantee/assignment fee
equivalent to 1/8 of 1 per cent of the remaining investments amounting to
P471,558,000 per annum. The guarantee/assignment fee is being paid by LLFC on a
quarterly basis. However, due to the maturity of the Retail Treasury Bond on August
15, 2023 amounting to P20,000,000, the total assignment fee paid by LLFC was
reduced to P489, 562, LLFC did not request for replacement of the matured assigned
investment.

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

This account consists of assets acquired through dacion en pago from the former
employee with outstanding obligation amounting to P998,316. The dacioned properties
consist of two parcels of land containing a total area of 5,847 square meters located at
Catbalogan, Western Samar. The appraised value of these properties amounted to
P2,924,000 per appraisal report of the LBP Property Valuation and Credit Information
Department dated May 22, 2017. There's a notation in the appraisal report that there is
a plan to reclassify the area from "Agricultural” to "Residential® but still pending for
approval by the Sangguniang Bayan of Catbalogan City. On September 02, 2022, the
management sent a formal request for an appraisal service coursed through the LBP
Department Manager of Agrarian Operations Center VIl located at the 2nd floor of
LandBank Bldg. Real St., Sagkahan District, Tacloban City. An ocular visit was done
with LBP personnel and LIBI's Administrative Unit on September 08, 2022.

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

This account consists of the following:

As at December 31, 2023

Information
Office and Furniture and i Motor
Equipment  Communication Fixtures Building Vehicles Total
Technology
Cost, January 1 14,540,037 6,215,790 2,757,400 40,237,325 7,847,768 71,598,320
Acguisitions 234 821 0 0 0 0 534 821
Construction in Progress 0 0 429,390 2,631,222 0 3,060,612
Cost, December 31 15,074,858 6,215,790 3,186,790 42,868,547 7,847,768 75,193,753
Accumulated
Depreciation, 10,681,694 2,675,857 1,724,254 30,916,008 4,840,832 50,838,645
January 1
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Depreciation 849,302 586,170 107,825 905,298 610,518 3,059,713
Accumulated

Depreciation, 11,530,996 3,262,627 1,832,019 31,821,306 5,451,350 53,898,358

December 31
Net Carrying Amount,

December 31 3,543,862 2,953,163 1,354,711 11,047,241 2,396,418 21,295,395
As at December 31, 2022 o )

Information
Office and Furniture and Motor
Equipment  Communication  Fixtures Building  yohicles Total
Technology
Cost, January 1 16,542 436 5876504 3,774,833 40,237,325 7,847,768 T{!TE,EEE_
Acquisiions 1,262,531 339,286 0 0 0 1601817
Adj -

e s (3,148,858) 0 (1,017,432) 0 0 (4,166,290)
b. Derecognition- loss dua
\o burglary and theft (116,070) 0 0 0 0 (116,070)
¢. Due t rounding-off (2) 0 (1) 0 0 (3)
Cost, December 31 14,540,037 6,215,790 2,757,400 40,237,325 7,847,768 71,598,320
Accumulated

Depreciation,

January 1 10,615,949 2132063 2.466,238 30,010,710 4,230,314 49455274
Depreciation 1,706,051 543,794 177,233 905,298 610,518 3942394
Adjustrrents:

Revarsal due o

reclassiication (1,611,325) 0 (919,217) 0 0 (2530,542)
Reversal of accumulated

depreciation due o loss (28,981) 0 0 (0 0 (28 981)
Accumulated

Depreciation,

December 31 10,681,694 2,675,857 1,724,254 30,916,008 4,840,832 50,838,645
o8 Carying Amaimt: 5,958,343 3530933 1,033,146 9,321,317 3,006,936 20,759,675

The renovation of the LIBI Office had started on July
P2,631,222 based on progreas billing was paid as of December 31, 2022 while a biling
for the Furniture and Fixture was unpaid as of December 31, 2023 due to unfinished

installation of workstations.

12.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16, 2023, and a total of

This account consists of the cost of computer software upgrade of the LIBl's existing
Integrated Insurance Business System (lIBS) version 3.3 to 4.0 web version sysiem.
The LIBI Board of Directors approved the full payment of the IIBS Ver. 4 Upgrade

Project, after cerification by LIBI Management that the project was completed per
Board Resolution No. 2022-003-017 dated February 24, 2022.
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/Liii | LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(A SUASIDIARY OF THE LAND BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A CONG LR S

The Management of LBP (Land Bank of the Phil.) Insurance Brokerage, Inc. is responsibie for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 in accordance with the prescrbed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the LBP (Land
Bank of the Phil.) Insurance Brokerage, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accourting
unless management either intends to liquidate the LBP (Land Bank of the Phil.) Insurance
Brokerage, Inc. or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the LBP (Land Bank of the Phil.)Insurance
Brokerage, Inc.’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Commission on Audit has audited the financial statements of the LBP (Land Bank of the Phil.)
Insurance Brokerage, Inc. in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions, and in their report to the stockholders, has expressed their opinion on the fairness
of presentation upon completion of such audit.

gl

LVIN G. DANS
hairman of the Board

Signed this 16 day of __ Apnd |, 2024.




Another intangible asset procured in CY 2018 is the Online Insurance Application
system with Virtual Assistant (CHATBOT) to help clients in facilitating their insurance

queries and needs.

LIBl's timekeeping payroll and human resource information system with a contract
price of P916,888.88 was approved by the LIBI Board per Board Resclution No. 2C21-
018-089 dated November 18, 2021. The development of the software program
Electronic Human Resource Information system (eHRIS) started in June 2022, ard it
was completed on November 18, 2022. A walkthrough and parallel run test were done
in the 1st quarter of 2023. The 2HRIS is now being utilized and the amortization started

in 2023,

As at December 31, 2023

_Ifievalapmn nt in

. " Progress Computer Software Total

Cost, January 1 3,625,794 6,019,692 9,645,486
Adjustments (transferred to
Computer Software) (3,625,794) 3,625,794 0
Cost, December 0 9,645,486 9,645,486
Accumulated Amortization,
January 1 0 1,004,633 1,004,633
Amorization 0 1,798,669 1,798,669
Accumulated Amortization,
Decemhber 31 0 2,803,302 2,803,302
Net Carrying Amount,
December 31 0 6,842,184 6,842,184

As at December 31, 2022

Development in

- Progress Computer Software B 'I'_n:.}tfal )
Cost, January 1 4,995,133 143,529 5,138,662
Acquisitions 818,651 3,688,173 4,206,824
Adjustments (transferred to
Computer Software) (2,187,990) 2,_1}_?,99!] S ..ﬂ
Cost, December 3,625,794 6,019,692 9,645,486
Accumulated Amortization,

January 1 0 95,686 95,686
ATSiwahRed - AmoTtizatior; 9 808.847——808.847
Refeah§int) Amount, 0 1,004,633 1,004,633
December3d 3625704 5045050  _ E£6403853
13. FINANCIAL LIABRILITIES

This account consists of:

2023 2022
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Insurance/Reinsurance Premium

Payable 264,615,103 170,402,412
Accounts Payable 39,108,677 37,120,537
Due to Officers and Employees 11,989 156,706
Other Financial Liabilities

Handling Fees Payable 5,680,180 25,876,137
Total - B 309,415,949 233,555,792

Insurance/Reinsurance Premium Payable pertains to outstanding insurance premiums,

and paid insurance premiums lo be remitted to insurance companies as of December
31, 2023 and 2022.

Accounts Payable includes unreleased checks, authority to debit and outstanding
check premium refunded to client totaling P35,224,438 for payment of insurance
premiums to various insurance companies that remain under the custody of the
Cashiering Unit as at December 31, 2023 awaiting corresponding tax certificates (BIR
Farm 2307) from various insurance companies. Included too were unreleased checks
totaling P3,884,239 representing payment of goods and services to suppliers. The CY
2022 Accounts Payable account included unreleased checks and authority to debit
totaling P32,811,392 for payment of insurance premium and P4,309,145 of unreleased
checks and Authority for Fund Transfers for premium refunds and payment of goods
and services. The 2022 accrued expenses were reclassified from Accounts Payable to
Accounts Payables-Others.

Due to Officers and Employees pertains to tax refunds to officers and employees.

Other Financial Liabilities-Hardling Fees Payable account pertains to handling fees
payable to LBP Head Office and LBP subsidiaries due for payment every March and
September of the year. With the implementation of PFRS 15, the Other Financial

Liabilities-Handling Fees Payable was adjusted based on the amortization schedule in
Note 16.

14. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

N . 2023 - 2022

Income Tax Payable 15,004,816 14,591,820
Value Added Tax Payable 3,619,911 3,103,070
Due to BIR _ 526,468 339,378
Total 19,151,195 18,034,268

Following the BIR Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 5-2021 issued on April 08,
2021, the Income Tax Payable account represents 25 per cent corporate income tax
remitted to the BIR within 60 cays following the close of each of the first three quarters
of the taxable year and April 15 of the following year.
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The Value Added Tax (VAT) Payable account represents the 12 per cent output tax on
the collected accrued service fees receivable for the month and remitted to the

BIR every twenty 25th day following end of the month while the quarterly remittance is
filed not later than the 25th day following the close of each taxable quarter.

The Due to BIR account represents five per cent government VAT withheld from
suppliers of goods and services; withholding tax withheld on compensation and the one

per cent or two per cent withholding tax at source. Withholding taxes withheld durnng
the month are remitted to the BIR every 10 days and 15 days following the end of the
month, respectively.

15. TRUST LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2023 2022
~ Current  Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total
Customer's Deposits Payable 90,817,036 0 9081703 127,056,510 0 127,056,510
Guaranty/Security Deposits
Payable 71,800 74,000 145,800 23,800 76,000 99 800
Total 90,883,836 74000 90962383 127,080,310 76,000 127,156,310

The Customer's Deposits Payable pertains to advance payments of premiums by
clients/assured awaiting issuance of insurance policies and/or matching of premium

invoices. Transactions representing excess payments of premiums are also recorded

under this account awaiting instruction from assured/LBP for refund or application to
future renewal of policies.

16. UNEARNED FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

This account consists of:

2023 e
Current Non-Current Total
_Uneamed Fees and Commission Income 61041789 156470814 217812603
Total 61,341,789 156,470,814 17,812,603

With the adoption and implementation of PFRS 15 through the issuance of Board
resolution, the management recorded unearned fees and commission income derived
from the CLI premium production for 2023 and how it was computed were disclcsed
under Note 4.14.

Amortization Table for yaar 2023

TERM LOANS | CURRENT | NON-CURRENT | TOTAL
[YEAR] 2024 | 2025
2 3,103,728 0 3,103,728
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1,799,160 1,799,160 [ 3,598,320
14,645,049 29,290,008 | 43,935,147
41,793,852 | 125,381,556 | 167,175,408
TOTAL | 61,341,789 | 156,470,814 | 217,812,603

=10

17. PROVISIONS

This account consists of:

2023 2022
~ Current  Non-Current Total Current  Non-Current Total
Leave Benefits Payable 8,498,781 0 8,498,781 7,764,066 0 7,764,066
OtherProvisions B 0 4256440 4256440 2234806 3,332564  5567.370
Total 8,498,781 4,256,440 12,755,221212 9,998,872 3,332,564 13,331.436

Other Provisions account refers to the estimated Performance-Based Bonus (PBB) of
LIBI's officers and staff and the Performance-Based Incentive (PEI) of LIBI's Board of

Directors is estimated to be sufficient to cover the years 2022 and 2021. No accrual for
the FBB or PBI was recorded in 2023,

18. OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of Accounts Payable-Others for accrued expenses of utiliies,
other general services and professional fees awaiting billing from suppliers. This
account also includes undistributed collection, which pertains to credit advices issued
by the LBEP branches and LBP Domestic Banking Department as of the close of the

transaction date. However, LIBl had not issued yet official receipts due to the lack of
details.

2023 2022
Accounts Payable - Others 5,791,699 3,618,432
Undistributed Collection 3,090,214 2,698 701
Total 8,881,913 6,317,133

19. SHARE CAPITAL

As at December 31, 2023, the total authorized, paid, issued and outstanding shares
are 3,000,000 shares with par value of P100.

20. RETAINED EARNINGS

a) Dividend Declaration

In compliance with Republic Act No. 7656 requiring the GOCCs to declare and remit

dividends to the National Government (NG) of at least 50 per cent of their annual
earnings, the Board of Directors on May 02, 2023, declared and approved a cash
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dividend of P151,604,034 through Board Resolution No. 2023-007-029 representing 60

per cent of LIBI's annual earnings for the year 2023.

b) Appropriations

As at December 31, 2023, total appropriations amounted to P615,570,446, detailed as

follows:

Particulars Amount
Appropriations for procurement of office space 200,000,000
Apprcpnation for the additional amount for the procurement of office space to cover
taxes and incidental charges 50,000,000
Appropriation for the procurement of Off-site Office for Business Continuity Plan 150,000,000
Appropriation for other contingencies 100,000,000
Appropriation improvement of office space 10,000,000
Appropriation for replacement of lighting system and replacement of office ceiling 8,000,000
Appropriation for computer peripherals 8,000,000
Appropriations for the re-arrangement and renovation of office area 6,000,000
Appropriation for furmniture and fixtures for off-site office 5,000,000
Appropriation seminars/trainings 5,000,000
Appropriation for office equipment and accessories 5,000,000
Appropriation for furniture and fixtures for office space 5,000,000
Appropriation for Directors’ Training on Good Governance 5,000,000
Appropriation for QMS/Surveillance Audit 5,000,000
Appropriation for PABX 3,000,000
Appropriation for replacement of carpets 2,500,000
Appropriation for skills/competency training 2,000,000
Appropriation for system change/adjustment request for 1IBS Version 4 2,000,000
Appropriation for alternate two (2) units of back-up servers 2,000,000
Appropriation for server back-up storages 2,000,000
Appropriation for structured cabling of data 1,750,000
Appropriation for IT disaster recovery back-up system 1,500,000
Appropriation for Chatbot Integration with [IBS Version 4 1,000,000
Appropriation for procurement of office equipment, fumiture, and fixtures 1,000,000
Appropriation for Time Keeping and Payroll System 957,008
Appropriation for the enhancement of Documents Management Systam 00,000
Appropriations for Retirement Plan, IIBS System Enhancement, and Energy 33,363,438
Consumplion
Total 615,570,446

The LIB| Board of Directors (BOD) approved under Board Resolution No. 2023-017-
057E dated September 28, 2023 to refund the unearned fees and commission income
deducted by the insurance provider from the CLI borrower's unexpired premium
refunds to the Branch Banking Sector of Land Bank. All unearned fees and commission
income to be refunded corresponding to the unused premium that pertain to prior years
which will affect the Retained Earmings Account shall be approved by the LIBI BOD
before the release of the insurance premium refunds. The reversal of the Retaned
Eamings - Unappropriated amounting to P85,128,094 represents refunds of uneamed

fees and commission income of CLI unexpired premiums as follows:
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Particulars Amount

First batch as per B.R No. 2023-017-065 dated October 26,2023 59,959,802
Second batch as per B.R. No 2023-019-062 dated October 26, 2024 16,962,016
Third batch as per B.R. No. 2023-022-076 dated December 28,2023 8,206,276

) 85,128,094
c) Adjustments

Other adjustments to the Retained Eamings for CY 2023 and 2022 are presented
below:

CY2023
Accounts Affected Particulars Amount

Accrued Expenses Payable - Reversal of over accrual of Audit fee for cy o
Auditing Services 2022. 533,566
Retained Eamings- Unappropriated Reversal of Allowance for Impairment-DBP

Tier that matured on November 20,2023, 384,352
Deferred Tax Asset Reversal of deferred tax asset relating to

allowance for impairment- DBP Tier (101,854)
Allowance for probable losses - Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued Service Fee Receivable and due to subsequent collections.
Deferred Tax Asset 1,541,644
Deferred Tax Asset Reversal of deferred tax asset relating to

allowance for impairment on accrued

service fees receivable - (385,411)
Sub-total 1,972,297
Other Financial Liabilities Prior years adjustment to Other financial

Liabilities from refund from unexpired CLI

premiums for the years 2020-2023. 5,588,017

Retained Earnings- Unappropriatec  Recovery of taxes paid in prior years
transactions as per Board Resolution no.
2023-01-057B dated September 28,2023. 24,119,529

Retained Eamings- Unappropriated Recovery of taxes paid in prior years
transactions as per Board Resolution
no.2023-019-065 dated October 26,2023. 6,777.482

Other Financial Liabilities Adjustments on Other Financial Liabilities
for the second batch of unexpired CLI
premiums. 1,992,006

Other Financial Liabilities Adjustments on Other Financial Liabilities
for the third batch of unexpired CLI
premiums. 417,843

Other Financial Liabilities Additional Adjustments on Other Financial
Liabilities for the second batch of unexpired
CLI premiums. 938,100
Other Financial Liabilities Adjustments of Other Financial Liabilities
handling fee rate for 2021 renewed
accounts. 2,738,076




Other Financial Liabilities

Adjustments of Other Financial Liabilities
handling fee rate for 2022 renewed

5,200,637
accounts.
Retained Earnings- Unappropriated  Recovery of taxes paid in prior years
transactions as per Board Resolution
no.2023-01-022-076 dated December
28,2023, 3,281,596
Subtotal 51,053,286
Total 53,025,583
CY2022
Accounts Affected Particulars Amount
Property and Equipment-PPE Reclassification of acquired PPE of below
P50,000 per RA No. 11639 and Circular (4,209,013)
No. 2022-004
Depreciation Expense-Office Recognition of additional depreciation
Equipment expense on reclassed Office Equipment (41,845)
below P50,000
Accumulated Depreciation-PPE Adjustment due reversal of those PPE
P50,000 and below per RA No. 11639 and
COA Circular No. 2022-004 2,584 404
Allowance for probable losses- Reversal of zllowance for probable losses
Accrued Service Fee Receivable and corresponding deferred tax asset due
(ASFR) and Deferred Tax Asset to collection and non-payment of accrued 2,410,571
service fee in prior years
Retained Eamings- Unappropriated  Retro-active application of salary
adjustments due to the implementation of
CPCS effective October 05, 2021 (949.671)
Accrued Expenses Payable-Audit Reversal of accrued expense-auditing
Fee services of COA for year 2020 and 2021 691,010
Due from Employees and Officers Collection of disallowed of group life
insurance for employees and directors 178,911
CY2021
Deferred Tax Asset Reversal of deferred tax asset relating to
allowance for impairment on accrued (B02,643)
service fees receivable
Receivables-Disallowance/Charges To take up additional receivables of
various retired LIBl Board of directors as
per ND LBP-Subs, 2008-015 (2002-2003) 334,289
PPE-Office Equipment Derecognition of lost laptop (44 643)
Pension Payable To recognize prior year's expense as a
result of the actuarial wvaluation on (1,575,645)

Pension Payable

December 31,2022

To reverse over accrual of pension benefit
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expense as a result of the actuarial

valuation on December 31, 2022 883,896
Total (340,379)
21. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME
2023 2022
Service Income
Fees and Commission Income 268,146,163 407,437,301
Other Discounts (13,596,896) (45,109,508)
Net Fees and Commission Income 254,549,267 = 362,327,793
Business Income
Interest Income 61,584,129 42 529 727
Total Business Income 61,584,129 42,529,727
Total 316,133,396 404,857,520

The fees and commission income were derived from the performance of services to
customers/clients, while the other discounts pertain to the handling fee expenses given
to LBP and LBP subsidiaries for appraisal, inspection of a property to be insured, and,
for the performance of other administrative matters such as the collection of payments
of insured properties,

The Service Income as of December 31, 2023 was already net of the application of
PFRS 15.

Interest income pertains to eamings from investments such as Retail Treasury Bonds,

DBP-Tier |l, Fixed Treasury Notes, and Treasury Bills and from depository bank
accounts.

22, PERSONNEL SERVICES

2023 2022

Salaries and Wages
Salaries and Wages-Regular

23,294 643 25,320,155
Salaries and Wages-Contractual

1,226,970 1,425,992
24,521,613 26,746,147

Other Compensatlion
Mid-year Bonus 2,141,700 2,298,488
Year-End Bonus 2,109,068 2,372,719
Overtime and Night Pay 1,696,649 1,863,002
Personnel Economic Relief Allowance (PERA) 1,353,887 1,441,704
Service Recognition Incentive 1,160,000 1,240,000
Representation Allowance 476,750 561,250
Transportation Allowance 364 250 354 250
Clothing/Uniform Allowance 316,070 315,991
Productivity Enhancement Incentive 290,000 310,000
Cash Gift 260,000 275,000
Honoraria 248,000 228,000
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Longevity Pay 25,000 30,000
Anniversary Bonus 0 165,000
Performance Based Bonus 0 954 .806
Rice Allowance 0 62,000
10,441,374 12,473,110

Personnel Benefit Contributions
Employees Compensation Insurance Premium 1,731,970 1,448,883
PhilHealth Contributions 477,724 469,574
Pag-IBIG Contributions 70,100 74,700
R - B 2,279,794 1,993,157

Other Personnel Benefits

Other Personnel Benefits 2940 429 3 B8O 408
2,940,429 3,889,408
Total 40,183,210 45,101,822

The other personnel benefits pertain to the money value of leave credits that were

earned by LIBI personnel.

23. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2023 2022
Traveling Expenses 2,779,572 2,028,484
Training and Scholarship Expenses 1,382,665 922,107
Supplies and Materials Expenses
Office Supplies Expenses 948 568 725,770
Semi-Expendable Machinery and Equipment 459,315 24,330
Accountable Forms Expenses 144, 393 128,559
Semi-Expendable Furniture, Fixtures & Books Expense 25,423 0
Non-Accountable Forms . 15,779 9,795
1,503,478 888,454
Utility Expenses
Electricity Expenses 989,261 1,416,155
Water Expenses - i o 250,441 149,953
1,239,702 1,566,108
Communication Expenses
Internet Subscription Expenses 6,122,758 2,120,051
Postage and Courier Services 614,300 462,557
Telephone Expenses 315656 651,632
7,052,714 3,234,240
Professional Fees
Auditing Service 1,101,250 990,042
Other Professional Services 787,954 1,618,917
Legal Services 240,000 240,000
Consultancy Services 33,333 52,500
2,162,537 2,901,459
Other General Services
Other General Services 4,495,651 458,722
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Security Services 541,109 363,412
5,036,760 822,134
Repairs and Maintenance
Repairs and Maintenance-Machinery and Equipment 475,462 420,575
Rapairs and Maintenance-Transportation Equipment 424 174 314,010
Repairs and Maintenance-Fumniture, Fixture and Books 0 5,457
Repairs and Maintenance-Semi-Expendable Machinery and
__Equipment 0 1,000
S 899,636 741,042
Taxes, Insurance Premium and Other Fees
Taxes, Duties and Licenses 3,293,287 2,513,338
Insurance Expenses 2,150,302 2,094,775
5,443,589 4,608,113
Other Maintenance and Operating Services
Directors’ and Committee Members' Feas 4,292 000 5,205,700
Representation Expenses 4,236,360 3,821,355
Subscription Expenses 1,201,065 696,096
Rent/Lease Expenses 257,325 270,110
Extraordinary and Miscellaneous Expenses 175,167 327,546
Advertising, Promotional and Marketing 166,324 50,000
Donation 110,286 100,911
Membership Dues and Coniribution to Organizations 12,000 12,000
Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses 5,810,238 4,726,865
16,260,765 15,210,583
Total 43,851,418 32,022,724

The Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses comprise of personal protective
equipment/supplies such as face masks and alcohol, housekeeping, and material
expenses, plannings, sports and development expense and other supplies and material
expenses like the corporate giveaways and other expenses of small value in the Petty
Cash Fund that do not fall under the definition or not included in the existing COA's

Revised Chart of Account.

24. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

2023 2022
Other Financial Charges 280,550 405,144
Bank Charges 24,894 24,290
108 : 305444 429,434

Other Financial Charges pertain to broker's fee and other incidental charges in the

placement or sale of investment securities.

25. NON-CASH EXPENSES

2023

2022

Depreciation (Note 11)
Cepreciation-Building 905,298

905,298
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Corporate Government Audit Sector
Cluster 1 — Banking and Credit

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors

LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc
12™ Floor, Sycip Law Center,
105 Paseo De Roxas,

Legaspi Village, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (LIBIl), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Land Bank of the Phiippines, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash

flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements, including matenal
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of the LIBI as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (1SSAlg). Our responeibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the LIBI in accordance with the Revised Code of Conduct
and Ethical Standards for Commission on Audit Officials and Employees (Code of
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfiled our -other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. {We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is EI:I-,{'I:iEIHt and appropriate c!_:fr?;wilide

a basis for our opinion | MM 1_3 P )

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with-Gevemance for the Financial
Statzments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management




Depreciation-Office Equipment 849,302 1,706,051
Depreciation-Motor Vehicle 610,518 610,518
Depreciation-Information and Communication 586,770 543,794
Technology
Depreciation-Furniture and Fixtures 107,835 177,233
- - 3,059,713 3,942,894
Amortization
Amortization-Intangible Assels (Note 11) o 1,798,669 908,947
Impairment Loss
Impairment Loss-Receivables (Note 6) 1,822,481 1617.074
Impairment Loss-investment in Bonds-Local (Note 9) 0 76,870
1,822,481 1,693,944
Total i ) B 6,680,863 6,545,785
26. NON-OPERATING INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES
26.1 Other Non-Operating Income
) 2023 2022
Other Non-Operating Income
Rental income 0 19,214
Donation in kind 0 35,165
Miscellaneous Income 2,394,282 905,096
Total . 2,394,282 959,475

The miscellaneous income account consists of the yearly guarantee fee being paid by
LLFC in consideration of the Deed of Assignment of LIBl's investments as stated in
Note 9. The miscellaneous income also includes the two per cent processing fee for

the unexpired premium refunds of CLI loan borrowers processed during the year.

26.2 Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Remeasurement on Retirement Benefit

Obligation
Balance, January 1, 2022 0
Add/{Deduct): Transactions during the year ) - 2,801,169
_Balance, December 31, 2022 ~ 2,801,169

Add/[Deduct): Transactions during the year 0
Balance, December 31, 2023 2,801,169

Pencing the response the GCG regarding the joint letter request for clarification on the
Retirement Benefit Plans of LBP Subsidiaries emailed to GCG on May 23, 2023 with a
follow-up letter dated January 10, 2024, the yearly valuation of LIBl's Retirement Fund

was suspended resulting to ne movement in the Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
account.

27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
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The provision for/ (benefit from) income tax consists of the following:

2023 2022
Income tax expense 41,936,274 69,995,362
Income tax benefit (455,620) (423,486)

41,480,654 69,571,876

The income tax benefit is computed as follows:

. 2023 2022
Impairment loss- loans and receivables 1,822,481 1,617,074
Impairment Loss-Expected Credit Loss 0 76,870
Total 1,822 481 1,693,944
Income tax rate 25% 25%
Income tax benefit 455,620 423,486

Reconciliation of income before income tax against taxable income is as follows:

A e 2023 2022
Income before income tax 227,506,743 320,817,230
Non-deductible expenses
Impairment loss-loans and receivables 1,822,481 1,617,074
Expected Credit Loss 0 76,870
Non-taxable income and income subjected to final tax:

Interest income (Note 21) ) _ (61,584,129) (42,529,727)
MNet taxable income 167,745,095 279,981,447
Income tax rate 25.00% 25.00%
Income Tax Expense 41,936,274 69,995,362

The adoption of PFRS 15 has no impact on tax liabilities, thus, the computation of
income tax was based on the 2023 taxable income of P356,806,434 that resulted to a
permanenttemporary difference of P47,265,335. The amount of temporary difference
was then recorded as Deferrec Tax Asset as shown below:

Met Income Permanent/Temporary Taxable Gross
Per Book Difference Income
Gross Fees and 268,146 163 217,812,603 485,958,766
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Commission Income

Less: Other (13,596,896) (28,751,264) (42,348,160)
Discounts/Cost of
Services
Met 254 549,267 189,061,339 443,610,606
Add: Other Income 2394 282 0 2,394 282
Total Gross Income 256,943,549 189,061,339 446,004,888
Less: ltemized

Deductions 89 198 454 0 89,198,454
Taxable Income 167,745,095 189,061,339 356,806,434
Tax Rate 25% 25% 25%
Tax Due 41,936,274 47,265,335 89,201,609
The Deferred tax asset is computed as follows:

- B _ - 2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year 4,011,348 4,190,505
Less: Reversal of deferred tax asset for PY 2022 and 2021
due to subsequent collection cf Accrued Fees (Note 20) (385,411) (602,643)
Reversal of deferred tax asset for PY2022 for the matured
investment in Bonds — DBP Tiar S (101,854) 0

Sub-total 3,524 083 3,587 862
Add: Income tax benefit for CY2022 (1,822,481 x 25%) Note 27 455,620 0
Add: Permanent/Temporary difference as a resuit of the adoption

of PFRS 15 47,265,335 0

Income tax benefit for CY2022 (1,693,944 x 25%) 0 423,486
Deferred Tax Asset, December 31 51,245,038 4,011,348

Income tax benefits shall be deducted from the LIBI's future tax obligations to the
extent of the amount of provision for accrued service fees receivable that will have no
economic benefits to the Corporation.

28. COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE COMMISSION (IC) CIRCULAR
LETTER (LC) NOS. 2018-52 AND 2021-65

The following are the requirad disclosures by the IC from insurance/reinsurance
brokers:

Net Waorth Compliance
The Company is required to comply with the minimum net worth requirement for an
insurance broker amounting to P25,000,000 per IC CL No. 2018-52. As of December

31, 2023, the LIBI's net worth of P1,471,596,134 is compliant with the minimum net
worth requirement set forth by the IC.

Fiduciary Ratio
The Company is required to comply with the fiduciary ratio requirement per IC CL No.

2021-65. The fiduciary ratio is a measure to assess the Company's conduct of handling
premiums from the policyholder (if insurance broker) or ceding company (if reinsurance
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broker), given that a broker is expected to be acting on a fiduciary capacity. The
fiduciary ratio is computed by dividing the total fiduciary assets (either cash or
receivables being held by an insurance and/or reinsurance broker, over the total
fiduciary liabilities). The fiduciary ratio to be maintained shall be 1:1.

Amounts used are gross of the commissions, allowances for impairment, taxes, fees
and other charges. The fiduciary assets and liabilities used are in accordance with IC-
CL No 2021-69 or the Revised Standard Chart of Accounts for insurance and/or
Reinsurance Brokers.

Fiduciary Ratio Computation

As of December 31, 2023, the LIBI's fiduciary ratio is computed as follows:

Fiduciary Assets ) i
Cash in Bank/Clients’ monies 357,634,020
Checks and Other Cash ltems 614,620
Local Currency on Hand ﬁ_‘iTEEET
'Accounts Receivable | 168,616,973

Total 526,867,113
Fiduciary Liabilities i ]
'Insuranuefﬁeinsuranﬂe Premium Payable 254,515,1ﬂ3i
Customers’ Deposit Payable (Note 13) 90,817,036
Accounts Payable (Note 13) 35,224,438
Undistributed Collections (Note 18) 3,090,214

Total 393,746,792
Fiduciar?‘ Re!tlu _ 1.34: 1

Based on the computation, the LIBI is compliant with the requirement per IC CL No.
2021-65 as of December 31, 2023.

29, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON REVENUE REGULATIONS (RR) NO.
15-2010

In compliance with the requirements set forth in RR 15-2010 issued by the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR), hereunder are the information on taxes, duties and license
fees paid and accrued during the taxable year.

a. LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. is a VAT- registered Corporation with VAT
output tax declaration of P54,744,369 based on actual collections during the year of
fees and commission amounting to P456,203,080. Actual VAT paid for the year
amounted to P51,894,771 after applying Input Tax of P2,840,173 and creditable
withholding tax of P9,425. The VAT payable of P3,619,911 (Note 14) was remitted in
the following monthiyear. Government VAT of P798,457 withheld from payments to
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suppliers of goods and services was also remitted to the BIR within the reglementary

period.

Changes in the balance of the input tax are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year 640,278
Current year's purchases:

Capital goods 534,821

Goods other than for resale or 365,245
manufacture

Services lodged under ather accounts 2,360,435

Input taxes claimed for the year (2,840,173) 420,328
Balance, end of year 1,060,606

Other taxes and licenses recarded under the Taxes and licenses account (Note 23) are

as follows: -
Local B
Mayor's permit 3,070,365
Real property tax 188,050
Community Tax D 10,500
G 3268915
MNaticnal
Renewal of Insurance Commission License 15,150
Registration of motor vehicle at LTO 7.592
Certification of 2022 Audited Financial Statements 500
BIR Registration 500
BIR annual registration 500
Document stamp and Tax Clearance 130
_ 24,372
SE 3.293,287
b. The income taxes/withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:
Corporate tax
Income Tax 20,363,719
Creditable withholding tax at source (paid in advance by
LIBI and used as tax credits) o 53,627,634
73,991,353
Tax on compensation and benefits 2,748,214
Expanded withholding tax from suppliers B 7,221,439
83,961,006
Reconciliation of the corporate tax paid for the year is as follows:
Met fees and commission income (Note 21) 443,610,606
Other non-operating income (Note 26.1) 2,394 282
Total 446,004,888
Allowable deductions (Note 22 to 22 excluding impairment loss) 89,198 454
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Total Taxable income 356,806,434

Tax rate 25%
Tax due (Note 27) B 89,201,609
Tax credits/payments
Prior years excess credits 205,439
Tax payments 1¢ to 3™ quarter 2023 20,363,719
Creditable withholding tax at source used in previous quarters 53,627,635
Creditable withholding tax BIR Form 2307 for the 4™ quarter 13,862,028
Totaltax credits/payments . 88,058,821
Tax still due (excess credits) after application of 4™ quarter 1,142,788

tax

30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVISED
SECURITIES REGULATION CODE (SRC) RULE 68

The financial soundness indicators of LIBI are as follows:

2023 2022
Current Ratio 1.75
Quick Ratio 0.92
Solvency Ratio 0.29
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.45
Asse! to Equity Ratio 1.45
Gross Profit Margin 1.00
Retumn on Average Assets 0.09
Return on Average Equity _ 0.14

Retum on Average Equity (ROE) for CY2023 is 13.58 per cent, while Return on
Average Asset (ROA) is 9.31 per cent. Compared to last year's ROE of 18.27 per cent
and ROA of 14.04 per cent, both declined by 25.67 per cent and 33.69 per cant,
respectively, because of the adoption of PFRS 15 in CY 2023. The per capita income is
P3.21 million, lower by 25.52 per cent or P1.10 million compared to the per capita
income of P4.31 million last year due to the recognition of unearned fees and
commission income pertaining 1o CLI premium produced during the year.

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The financial statements include various transactions with its parent and affiliated
companies. The more significant related party transactions, arising from normal course
of business include the following:

a. To defray expenses in the appraisal, inspection of property to be insured and
other administrative matters such as collection of insurance premium payments of
insurad properties; handling fees are given to LBP and L3P subsidiaries. In adherence
to the PFRS 15 for the current year, handling fee accrued and payable to LBP
subsidiaries reached P13,596,896 (Note 21). A total of P15,634,825 was remitted to
LBP Head Office Cash Department and P94,105 to LBP Leasing and Finance
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Corporation in September. The remaining Other Financial Liability-Handling Fee of

P5,680,180 (Note 13) will be remitted in March 2024.

b. Compensation of key management personnel for 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
S 2023 2022
For the President and General Manager
Total salaries and wages 2,354,104 3,978,633
Total short-term employee benefils 2,388 609 4 256,077
(RA, PEI, SRI, per diem, bonuses)
4,742 803 8,234 710
For Corporate officers who are employees
of the parent, LBP:
Total short-term employee benefits (per diems 470,000 329,540
and reimbursable expenses)
5,212,803 8,564,250
C. A Trust Agreement was made and entered into by and between LBP Insurance

Brokerage, Inc. (LIBI) and LBP — Trust Banking Group (LBP-TBG) on July 18, 2011
thereby appointing the latter as the Trustee of the LIBI's Retirement Benefit Plan. The
essential terms and conditions of the agreement are as follows:

The Trustor (LIBI) shall deliver and pay to the Trustee such sums
representing the annual contributions of the Trustor as provided in the Plan,
starting with the contribution for the PY2021 in the amount of PESOS: Ten
Million One Thousand Pesos (P10,001,000.00).

The Trustor hereby waives all its rights and interest to the money or
properties which are and will be paid or transferred to the Fund, to the
extent required to provide the benefits pursuant to the Plan.

The Trustee shall hold the title to the Fund to be held in trust for the
purpose stated in and subject to all the terms and conditions of the
Agreement as well as the Plan, which shall be deemed part of this
Agreement. The Trustee shall invest and re-invest the Fund, together with
all increments and proceeds in fixed-income government securities like
Treasury Bills or Notes, Agrarian Reform Bonds, Retail Treasury Bonds,
BSP Special Deposit Account and other financial instruments duly
guaranteed by the Republic of the Philippines; deposit
arrangements/special deposit account with reputable banks including the
Trustee's own commercial banking sector, and common or preferred
shares of stocks, bonds or note issued by blue-chips private and
government-owned corporations. Other investment outlets shall require
prior written approval of the Trustor,

To cause any asset acquired from the investment/reinvestment of the Fund
to be held, registered and issued in its own name as Trustee or in the name
of its nominee, provided, that the books and records of the Trustee shall at
all times show that all such properties are part of the Fund. To pay all costs,
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fees, charges and such other expenses connected with the investments,
administration, reservation and maintenance of the Fund and to charge the
same to the Fund.

In the management of the fund, the Trustee shall pay to the beneficiaries
the benefits under the Plan upon written advice of the Trustor. To keep and
maintain books of accounts and/or records of the management and
operations of the Fund, which the Trustor or its authorized representative
may inspect from tme to time. At the end of every calendar quarter, to
submit the financial reports, investment activity reports or such other
reports as may be requested by the Trustor. The Trustee shall administer
the funds held in trust with such degree of skill and care as a prudent man
would exercise in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with
similar aims.

For its services, the Trustee shall be entitled to a fee equivalent to 0.75 per
cent per annum of the average total assets of the Fund, computed daily
and collected at the end of each quarter. The Trustee is hereby authorized
to debit its fees from the Fund. The above fee is quoted with the
understanding that the same may be reviewed at the request of either party
and adjusted in a mutually satisfactory basis.

Except for fraud, bad faith or gross negligence, the Trustee shall not be
liable for any losses or depreciation in the value of the Fund resulting from
investments or reinvestments thereof as authorized herein, or from the
performance of any act in accordance with the provision of the Agreement.
This Agreement shall not guarantee a yield, return of income on the
investment/reinvesiments of the Fund as the same can fall as well as rise
depending on prevailing market conditions and is not covered by Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Losses, if any, shall be for the account of
the Trustor (pursuant to Section X409.1 of the Manual of Regulations for
Banks-Part V).

The Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the termination of
the Plan unless sooner terminated by either party hereto by giving thirty
days advance notice to the other.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

LIBI recognizes the importance of an effective financial risk management program, and
a Risk Management Manual was finalized and approved by the members of the Board

in 2009.

The objective of the Manual is to serve as basis and reference for consistent risk
management that is applicable to all employees of LIBI. It aims to create a culture of
risk-awareness, not risk-aversion based on the prudential framework required by BSP
circulars. It provides a general set or risk principles delegated to each business unit
through its reporting and approval procedures.
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An Audit and Risk Managemen: Committee was created to be primarily responsible for
the development and oversight of the risk management programs of LIBl which include
oversight of management functions and approval of proposals regarding LIBI's policies,
procedures and best practices relative to asset and liability management, credit,
market and business operations risks ensuring that: (a) insurance requirements of its
parent, LBP, and their lending units are passed on to LIBI; (b) system of limits remain

effeclive; and (c) immediate comrective actions are taken whenever limits are breached
or whenever necessary.

As part of identification risk, the following are classified as major risks that LIBI
manzages in the course of its business.

Market Risk

Market risk can be generally defined as risk of loss, immediate or over time, due to
adverse, fluctuations in price or market value of instruments, products and transactions
in LIBI's overall portfolio. Market risks are central focus of risk measurement
methodologies and limits, as well as gauge by which LIBI can determine the returns it
will require for its activities.

The net premium wvolume produced during the year reached P1,881,815,393
representing an increase of 15.99 per cent or P259,368,228 compared to last year's
net premium volume of P1,622447 665. This was primarily due to the increase in the
Credit Life Insurance (CLI)YMortigage Redemption Insurance (MRI) of LBP Branch Loan

Borrowers with a share of 56.93 per cent or P1,071,279,216 from the total premium
produced this year.

MNet fees and commission income from insurance brokering for the year of
P254 549 267 was 29.75 per cent or equivalent to P107,778,526 lower compared to
last year's 362,327,793 net service fees (Note 21) due to the adoption of PFRS 15.

LIBl, as a subsidiary of LBP, has already a captured LBP as market for its products and
services. Nonetheless, LIBI continues to intensify its campaign to solicit more direct
busiress from private corporations and other government entities.

Liquidity Risk

It is the risk that LIBI will be unable to make a timely payment of any of its financial
obligations to customers or counterparties in any currency.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities. Insurance cash inflows from operations and readily marketable
government securities investments provide the bulk of LIBI's liquidity buffer.

Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. LIBI's fixed rate investments in held-to-maturity
investments are exposed to such risk. Interest income derived from investments and
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savings deposits this year of P51,584,129 is higher by 44.80 per cent or equivalent to
P19,054,402 compared to last year's interest income of P42,529,727 (Note 21).

It is the policy of LIBI to invest excess funds in government securities (GS) where the
servicing and repayments are fully guaranteed by the government. The investment in
GS may be placed with the LBP Treasury and Investment Banking Group or LBP-TEG.

LIBI's Investment Committee observes diversified GS portfolio, varied maturity
spectrum and optimum vyields in deciding the type and term of investment. When
yields of GS are expected to go down, LIBI buys long-term GS in order to lock-in on
high yielding GS. Conversely, when yields are expected to go up. it buys short-term
GS to stay liquid and be able to switch to high yielding GS when rates start to pick up.

LIBI's principal financial instruments comprise of cash deposits, held-to-maturity
investments consisting primarily of investment in government securities like Treasury

Bills, Retail Treasury Bonds, Fixed Treasury Notes (Note 9). These are not subjected
to mark-to-market valuation.

Total investments as at December 31, 2023 was P1,340,817,266 which was 62.93 per

cent of the LIBI's total assets of P2,130,575,851. Liguid assets of P459,009,116 were
9.21 times the current liabilities of P498,178 463.

The table below summarizes the Maturity Profile of the Corporation's Assets and

Liabilities.

2023 2022
Due within1  Due beyond 1 Total Due within 1 year Due beyond 1 Total
year year year

ASSETS
Gash and Cash equivalents 459,009,116 0 459,009,116 235837099 0 235,637,099
Receivables, net 225,861,504 1,589,383  227.450,887  127,14963 1,591,783 128,741,417
Inventories 452,346 0 452,345 361,069 0 361,099
Investments 180,129,317 1,160,687,049 1,340,817,266 234072742 1212674872 1446747614
Investment Property 0 998,316 998,316 0 998 316 498,316
Property and Equipment, net 0 21295395 21,295,395 0 20,759.675 20,759,675
Intangible Assets, net 0 6,842,184 6,842,184 0 6640853 8,640,853
Defarred Tax Assets 0 51,245038 51,245,038 0 4,011,348 4,011,348
Other Assets 21,972,819 492,384 22,465,303 21,266,286 507,821 21.774.107
Total Assets 887425202 1243150649 2,130,575851 615486860 1240184668 1867671528
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities 309,415,949 0 309415949 233,555,792 0 233,555,792
Inter-agency Payables 19,151,195 0 19,151,195 18,034,268 0 18,034,268
Trust Liabilities 90,888,536 74,000 90,962,836 127,080,310 76,000 127,156,310
Uneamed Fees and 61,341,789 156 470,814 217,812,603 0 0 0
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determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staiements. management is responsible for assessing the
LIBI's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the LIBI or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the LIBl's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audif of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISSAls will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial siatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAls, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skapticiem throughout the audit. We also

. Identify and assess the risks of maternial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the LIBI's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and  the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related discjﬁsur&ﬁmade by man ent.
| Ly a3 B

. Conclude on the appropriateness of managamépi‘s use o going caoncey

basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence \obtained, whether a' materal
uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may cast sighificant doubt on the
LIBI's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclesures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the LIBI to cease to continue as
a going concern.




Commission Income

Provising 6,498,781 4,256,440 12,755,221 9,998 872 3,332,564 13,331,436
Other Payables 8,881,913 i} 8,881,013 6,317,132 0 6,317,132
Total Lisbilities 498,178,463 160,801,254  G58,979,717 304,986,374 3,408,564 398,394 938
AssetLiability Gap 380,246,739 1,082,349395 1,471,596,134 223,500,486 1,245,776,104 1,468,276,580
Credit Risk

a. Direct Credit Risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will be unable to pay
obligations on time or in full as expected or previously contracted, subjecting LIBI to a
financial loss. It lasts for the entire tenor and is set at the full amount of a transaction.
The possibility of non-collection of Accounts Receivable within one year is moderate
due to intensified collection through faster sending of Statement of Accounts through
fax, email, mail, and frequent follow-ups by phone. LIBI's collection rate of 98 per cent
for the current year is 1 per cent higher than the 97 per cent collection rate last year.

b. Management has negotiated with LBP for the advance payment of policies by the
branches/lending units.

33. SUBSQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

a. On March 14, 2024, the LIBI received a notice of discrepancy related to the
Letter of Authority No. eLAAUDMZ29-047-2023-059483/202200043420 dated
October 31, 2023 that LIBI received on November 24, 2023. The notice includes
details of tax liabilities discrepancies which the management is in the process of

preparing reconciliation schedules to present to the investigating BIR Revenue
Officer.

b. On April 17, 2024, the members of the LIBI's Executive Committee (ExCom)
approved the declaration and payment of cash dividend of P247 541,103
representing 75 per cent of the dividend base of P330,054,804 that was based
on the Annual Corporate Income Tax Return duly filed with the BIR RDO of LBP
Insurance Brokerage, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2023, a compliance
with the requirement of the revised Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR)
of RA No. 7656 or the Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations
(GOCC) Dividend Law. Since the letter for the Department of Finance dated
April 08, 2024 which the management received on April 11, 2024, required the
LIBI to remit 75 per cent of its CY2023 Net Earnings on or before April 19, 2024,
the ExCom on April 17, 2024, approved the proposal for the payment of 50
percent or P123,770,552 of the cash dividend io the Bureau of Treasury on
April 19, 2024, The proposal of the cash dividend declaration and payment was
endorsed by the ExCom for final approval for the LIBl Board of Directors on
April 25, 2024 scheduled BOD meeting.

C. On the same day, April 17, 2024, the proposal for the disposition of Excess
Retained Eamings for CY2023 was approved by the members of the LIBl's
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ExCom and for approval by the LIBl Board of Directors on April 25, 2025. A
total of P170,570,446 appropriations was reversed because the appropriations
have been fulfilled while some appropriations did not materialize. Likewise, new
appropriations totaling F176,253,862 was proposed.

On April 25, 2024, the LIBI Board of Directors approved both the proposals for
the declaration and payment of cash dividend of P247,541,103 payable on
instalments, and the disposition of the excess Retained Earnings for CY2023
per Board Resolution Nos. 2024-006-025 and 2024-006-026 dated April 25,
2024, respectively.

The result of above proposals changed the structure of LIBI's Equity as follows:

Share Capital 300,000,000
Retained Earnings

Appropriated 621,253,862

Unappropriated 300,000,000 921,253,862
Accumulated Comprehensive Income 2,801,169
Balance as of April 30, 2024 1,224,055,031

a0



Republic of the Philippines |
City of Makati | 8.5.

JOINT AFFIDAVIT

ALVIN G. DANS and EUSEBIO A. CORTEZ . Filipinos. both of legal ages, with business
address c/o LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE INC. (LIBI), 12" Floor, Sveip Law Centre Building.
105 Paseo de Roxas St., Legaspi Village, Makati City, afier having been duly sworn in accordance

with law do hereby depose and state that:

1. The undersigned ALVIN G. DANS and EUSEBIO A, CORTEZ. Chairman of the Board and

the Corporate Treasurer, respectively, of LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (LIBI);

r

are audited by the Commission on Audit (COA);

LIBI is a Government-Owned and Controlled Corporation (GOCC) whose financial statements

3. The financial statements and the supporting documents for the year 2023 were timely provided
to COA during the audit period ergo the audit by COA of the Annual Audit Report of LIBI for

the year 2023 has just been concluded:

4. Per Paragraph 1.2 (c) of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 02 series of 2024, LIBI is not
governed by the 2024 schedule of filing of annual financial statements and may submit bevord
schedule provided an AfTidavit is executed and confirmed by the Commission on Audit;

the aforestated SEC Memorandum Circular No. 02, Series of 2024,

£ A
EUSERIO :%ETE?:
Corporate Treasurer

MAY 2.3 7%
_ _dayof

SUBSC-HIHED AND SWORN to before me this

Makati, Philippines.
TIN NO.
ALVIN G, DANS | B0-528-515

EUSEBIO A. CORTEZ 199-335-297
LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC. NOOT

”l,'ll;;. 1"'-.ll_':|,: I!Ei Pl i —l“ﬂ;- i :

Page No.: .4 s X

Book Mo.: A\ Appt. No. M-O18 [2024-2025) Malati City
s " Atomey's RollNg, 3562
Series of 2024 MELE Complianee Na. VILO00ADAS valid until 4-14-2~~-

PTR Mo, 100740081,/1-2- 2024 /M aka Ci
| Litetime Mamber Mo, 05413
G/F Deda Ross Carpark |, Dala Roeg *
Lagaspl Village, Bakati Ch

3. Weare executing this atffidavit 1o atest the truthfulness of the foregoing and in compliance with

at City of



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

LAND BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES
21% Flowor, Land Bank Plaza
1598 M. H. del Filar corner Dr. J, Quintos Sis., Malste, Mamla

OFFICE OF THE SUPERVISING AUDITOR

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF THE AUDITOR

The Board of Directors

LBF Insurance Brokerage, Inc.
12/F SycipLaw Center,

105 Paseo De Roxas,

Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (LIEI), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and
the statements of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to financial statements.
Accordingly, we transmitted the Audit Report on LIBI for the calendar years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 on May 15, 2024.

In compliance with the Revised SRC Rule 68 issued b'y" the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we are stating that LIBI is a subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines of
which it owns all the common shares of LIB| as at December 31, 2023.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

e

MARIE FRANCES HAZEL S. ACEBEDO
Supervising Auditor

g, 4. Lu
May 16, 2024



LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
FINAMCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY

AS OF DECEMBER 30, 2023 Paawl bl
MAME OF ISSUEING
ENTITY AND VALUE BASED ON MARKET
ASSOCIATION OF NUMEER OF SHARES OR AMOUNT SHOWN IN THE QUOTATION ATEND OF | INTEREST RECEIVED
EACH ISSUE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF BONDS BALANCE SHEET REPORTING PERIOD AND ACCRUED
LBP-RTB

LEF R TH 100,000,000.00 100,000, 0:00.00 100,408 273 33 4 095 900 596
LEP-RTH 351.558,000.00 389,719.915.32 352,993, 317 87 15,437, 77T6.66
LEP-RTE 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 30,120,024 00 840,000.00
LEP.RTE 10.000.000.00 10.000,000.00 10.039 500 B7 210,000.00
LBP-RTE 100,000, 000,00 100,000,000.00 100.3593.660.00 1,773,333.48
LEP.BTE 50.000,000.00 50,000,000.00 D 197 95333 1,726,666 .56
LEF.RTE 142 000 000.00 142 000, 000.00 142 562 18T 47 5,722 600.08
LBP-RTB 50.000,000.00 50,000,000.00 50.197,053.33 2,440,899.62
833,558,000.00 871,719,915.32 87T 466,234,237 33080, 376.66

H

W
LAP-FXTN 49 289,000.00 89 478 368.58 99 680 48091 4,309.633.48
LBF-FXTN 200,000,000.00 199,784 025.37 200 78T 320,00 & 588 584 07
_LBP-FXTN 89 861.000.00 89 705 640,32 20,214, 746 81 4 363, 101.08
385,150,000.00 JEB,968,034 27 390,682,556.72 18,349,318.63

¥
LBP - TBILLS 100,998,000_00 100,708 .976.73 100,750,607 48 T88,863.52
LBP-TBILLS 81,946,000.00 B80,129.316.32 B0 472 471 89 533,650.83

Total 1,304,654,000.00 1,340,817,265.91 1,448,621,262.98 51,943.345&




Schedule of Accounts Receivable-Trade for Related Parties which are Eliminated during consolidation of FE

Az of Dacember 2023 Schedule B
"Annex 68-E"
Balance Balance EBalance
at the end Addifions Total Aot al the and Current Mat at the end
FROFIT CENTER of period (B+C) Colecied of period Current of period
AGUSAN LENDING CENTER 200,857 503,635 794 491 260,857 503 635 503,635 - 503,635
AKLAM LENDIMNG CEMTER . 310,035 210,035 - 310,035 310,035 - 310,035
ALBAY LENDING CENTER 19,135 326,599 345,734 14,688 331,046 326,589 4,447 331,048
AURORA LEMDIMNG CENTER 174 368 301,815 476, 201 174 3686 ﬂ.l.':l‘l B35 301,835 - 301,835
'BATAAN LENDING CENTER - 44,025 44 025 44 025 44,025 ; 44 025
BATAMNGAS LENDING CENTER 100,480 4 124 345 4 224 B34 100, 489 4 124 348 4 124 346 - 4 124 348
BENGUET LENDING CENTER 564,717 1,748,635 23133852 | 564,717 1,748 635 1,748,635 : 1,748 835
BOHOL LENDING CENTER 74 985 49,137 124,123 74,085 49137 48,137 = 49,137
'BUKIDNON LENDING CENTER 2 413,754 3,331,035 5,744,783 2.413,754 3,331,035 3,331,035 - 3,331,035
BULACAN LENDING CENTER 1,303,903 5,625,353 7,229,255 1,265,206 5,064 050 5 925 353 38,697 5,964 050
CAGAYAN DE ORO LENDING CENTER 204 907 3,360,309 3,555,218 204,807 3,350,309 3,350,309 5 3,350,309
CAGAYAN LENDING CENTER 438,597 1,269,564 1,708,181 426,251 1,281,910 1,268,564 12,345 1,281,910
CAMARINES LENCING CENTER 13,815 : 13,815 351 13 454 - 13464 13.464
CAMARINES MORTE LENDING CENTER . T.043 7,043 - T.043 7.043 7043
CAMARINES SUR LENDING CENTER 31,950 53,065 85915 31,950 53 965 53,985 : 53 965
CAPIZ LENDING CENTER 683,037 326,060 1,009,095 683.037 26,060 326,060 326 060
CARAGA NORTH LENDING CENTER 537,847 1,121,484 1,659,331 537 847 1,121,484 1,121,484 1,121 484
CARAGA SOUTH LEMDING CEMTER 488 072 - 488 072 48B 072 = - - -
CAVITE LENDING CENTER 1,004,341 1,076,840 2 (081,182 1,002.725 1,078 457 1,076,840 1617 1,078 457
CEEL MORTH LENDIMG CENTER 3,059,162 1,753, 204 4 812 458 3,053 055 1,759 401 1.753 204 6107 1,758 401
CEBU SOUTH LENDING CENTER 5,003,851 §,268, 084 11,291,948 5,003,851 5,288,094 6,288,084 6,268,094
CORDILLERA ADMINISTRATIVE REGION 258,026 313,185 569,210 256,026 313,185 313,185 313,185
CORPORATE BANKING DEPT. 1 11,202,827 B,787.14d 17,989,971 11,202,827 6,767,144 6 787,144 : B.787 144
CORPORATE BANKING DEPT 11 448,226 5,517.009 5,265,325 446,618 5,818,707 5 817,089 1508 5,818,707
CORPORATE BANKING DEPARTMENT Il : 1,860,171 1,860,171 3 1,860,171 1,860,171 1,850,171
DANVAD DEL NORTE LENDIMG CENTER 63,305 156 408 219713 63,305 156 408 156,408 156 408
DAVAC DEL SUR LENDING CENTER 163,922 1046565 268,577 163,922 104,655 104,655 104 655
Davalr LENDING CENTER 4 B4 534 14,568 220 19,4710, 754 4 842 534 19,568 220 1 S8 220 14,558 220
GENERAL SANTOS LENDING CENTER 807 651 2 892 453 3,800,144 07 B51 2 592 493 2,802,493 2,802 493
ILOCOS NORTE LENDING CENTER 30 650 30,658 ; 30,658 30,650 30,650
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Schedule of Accounts Receivable-Trade for Related Parties which are Eliminated during consolidation of F5

Page 2 of 3

Az of Decamber 2023 Schedule B
"Annex 68-E"
Ealance Balanoe Balance
atthe and Additicns Taotal Amount al the and Currant Rt at the end
PROFIT GENTER of period (B+C) Cobected of period Curren of periad
[ILOCOS SUR LENDING CENTER 15,063 2 647 17,700 15,053 2647 2 647 - 2647
ILOILO LENDING CENTER 235 905 §,105,303 6,341 208 208,870 6,132,338 6,105,303 27,035 6,132,338
ISABELA LENDING CENTER 302,376 = 302,376 02,376 - -
LA UNION-ILOCDS LENDING CENTER : 59,771 59,771 3 59,771 54,771 . 59,771
LAGUNA LENDING CENTER 224 006 1.585 818 1,800 824 181,143 1,828 681 1.585.818 42863 1,628 B8
LANAD LENDING CENTER 2 034 BO9 2 B84 356 4919 255 2,034,809 2,884 3595 2.884 306 2,884 306
LEYTE LENOMIMG CENTER 204172 645,120 Ba5 252 204172 545 120 G45,120 B45 120
LOAN RECOVERY DEFARTMENT 582 915 1.062 154 2,045,069 982,915 1,062 154 1,082,154 . 1,062,154
MORTGAGE BANKING DEPARTMENTS 3,113,435 2,965,723 6,079,158 3,018,280 3,060,858 7 065 723 % 145 3,060,868
_NEGHDE DCCIDEMTAL LENDIMG CENTE 3,297 865 21,386 303 24 684 173 3294 523 21,388 550 21,386 303 1247 21,389 550
MNEGRDS DRIENTAL LEN-I:IlHG CENTER 1,067 B13 342 513 1.400 126 1,057,030 343 085 3427 513 583 343 096
NORTH COTABATD LENDING CENTER 1,378,542 1,152 681 2.531,222 1,357,105 1174117 1,152 681 21437 1,174 117
NORTHERN ISABELA LENDING CENTER 055,073 £15,178 1,570,253 955,073 §15,178 515,179 815,179
NUEWA ECLIA LENDING CENTER 248 851 20,872 1.069 823 244 309 B25.514 820872 4 542 B25 514
MNUEWVA VIZCAYA LENDING CEMTER 31,78 140,579 172,368 31,780 1-I1-'|.'.F: 5-7'“9 140,574 140,579
QCCIDENTAL MINDORO LEMDING CENTH 374 B18 534 414 Bla 232 T4 818 53 414 534 414 534 414
ORIENTAL MINDORO LENDING CENTER 545,825 065,411 1,512,236 448,389 1,063,847 9A5 411 0¢ 438 1,063 847
PalaWwaN LEMDING CENTER 340 31,830 32 169 340 31.830 31,830 31,830
PAMPANGA LEMD NG CENTER 84 406 2048 855 J04, 783 84 806 209 B5E 200,858 209 B58
PANGASINAN LEMDING CENTER 711,044 G20, 148 1631173 708 223 521,940 920,128 1.821 421,949
PROVIDEMNT FUMD OFFICE 1,399 568 E40, F4B 2,040 316 1,393,568 B40, T48 Edl].?lil:!. - Ga0 T48
QUEZON LENDING CENTER 34,385 272,086 306,391 34,355 272,036 272,036 : 272,036
CQIUIRING LENDING CENTER 65,039 9, 338 T4 377 51,288 23078 9 338 14,741 23079
RIZAL LEMDING CENTER 1,084 859 377759 4 BT 2 4858 1,054 BSS 3777.5M 3777501 377750
SAMAR LENDING CENTER 3015 585 5,358 50 8,378,136 3,018 586 5,359 551 5,358 551 5,359,551
SME LENDING DEPARTMENT (SLD) 1,644 107 4 155 55¢ 5,799 658 1,643,751 4 155 908 4 155,552 356 4 155,908
_EGHS'DG{]H LEMNCING CENTER 232 264 25,801 258,155 232,254 25 5901 25,901 25901
SOUTH COTABATO LENDING CENTER 435 0585 503 632 538 687 399,333 530 354 503 832 35,722 539 354




Schedule of Accounis Receivable-Trade for Related Parties which are Eiminated during consolidation of F3

As of December 2023 Schedule B
"Annex 68-E"
Balance Balance Balance
at the end Additions Tatal Amiouni at the end Currant Mot at the end
FROFIT CENTER of period (B+C) Colacted of period Curnent of pesriod
SOUTHERM ISABELA LENDIMNG CENTER 10,318 185 B2 166,118 10,316 155 802 155 802 - 155,802
SOUTHERN LEYTE LENDING CENTER 161 0&0 55 680 217 .069 161,080 55980 55 0BG - 55 989
SULTAN KUDARAT LEMDING CENTER 61.328 260,214 321,542 61,328 260,214 260,214 . 260,214
SURIGAD DEL SUR LEMDING CENTER 133,138 83,214 186,352 133,138 53214 53214 - 53,214
TARLAC LENDING CENTER 713,147 1.046 469 1,819,815 771,085 1.048.520 1,045,469 2,051 1,048,520
_THL.'ET MHRHETEE DEFARTMENT BTT 481 BT 481 1,354 D2 BT 481 B7T 481 &77 481 - B77T 481
UNDER CONSERVATORSHIP 41797678 | ; 41,797 679 : 41,787 879 § 41,797,679 41,797 679
ZAMBALES LENDING CENTER 131 864 1.174 291 1,306,155 131,864 1,174,291 1,174,201 - 1,174,281
ZAMBOANGA LENDIMNG CENTER 318,31 384 216 TOG 547 319,30 384 216 384 218 - B4 216
ZAMBOANGA DEL NORTE LENDING CEN 87 680 - BT 880 87 680 . - -
ZAMBOANGA DEL SUR LENDING CENTE 182374 101,008 283,381 182,374 101.008 101,008 . 101,008
sub-totals 102,361,986 125,525,153 227 BB7,140 60,138,045 167,748,095 125,525,153 42,222,942 167,748,055
Customer Redated Paries
DIRECT ACCOUNTS 47 443 53,295 130,738 33,343 g7.395 g5 411 1,984 a7 355
LBP LEASING CORPORATION 2,435 114 652 425 3,087,539 2 385 388 702.151 652 425 49,726 702,151
LBP RESOURCES & DEVELOPMENT COR 147 529 B67.706 215,335 146,002 £9.333 67,706 1,627 69,333
sub-totals 2,620,187 813,425 3,433,612 2,564,733 BEE BTE 815,541 53,337 863,878
Grand Totals-AR-12.31.2023 104,962,173 126.338.578 231,320,751 62,703,778 168,616,973 126,340,604 42 276,278 168,616,973

parad by ;
A
A BEYOD A 1
Lo n ppecigist 11 Accounting Head
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ANNEX &8-C

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

As of Decermber 31, 2023

LBP (Land Bank of the Phils.)insurance Brokerage, Inc.
12/ F SSHG Law Cantre Bldg., 105 Pasen De Roxas,

Legaspi Village, Makati City 1208

Unappropriated Retained Eamings, as adjusled o
avallable for dividend distribution, beginming

Add: Net income actually earnedirealized during the period
Net Income durng the peried closed to Retained Eamings

Less: Non-aciyaliynrealized income net of Lax
Equity in nat income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (excep! those attributable
fo Cash and Cash Equivalents) Unrealized actuarial gain
Fair value adjustment (M2M) gains
Adjustment due to deviabion from PFRSAGAAP-gain
Criher unreslized gains or adjustmants o the retainad samings as &
result af cerlain Iransaclions accounted for wnder the PFRS
Sl -tatal

ddd: Mon-actual loases
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjusimant dus o deviation from PERSIGAAR-loss
Impairmean Loss-Laans and Recaivable
Loss on fair value adjustment of invesiment property [after Lax)

Add; Net Income actually earmnedirealized during the period

AddiLess):
Declaration of Cash Dividend
Feas and commission refund adjustments

Oither adjusiments

PAEELASWRL W R B e rean il B LIRS | ORCRIARA L DTS 1 LA ) P |

refunds

TOTAL RETAINED EARMNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

Certified Comect by:

¥ &P AL
nting Head

250,904,975
267,604 625
1,822 481
1.822 481
760,427,306
(151,604 034)
(5,128,004}
1,972 297
§1,053 285 (183,706,545
336,625,736
Neled by

CHERRY MAY T, FREDERICK
Acting Fresidenl and CEC



ANNEX 6B.1-M SCHEDULES

LEP INSURANCE BROKERAGE INC,

CAPITAL STOCK (1) SCHEDULE K
dia of Decembear 31, 2023
Title af Mumber of Mumber of shares | Mumber of shares | Numbar of Direclions CRhars
teaue (2] Sharas imsued and resanved fof ahsras bkl
authorized ouistandirg at oplions, warrants, | by related
[commaon stock | S Linder cofrersion and parties (1)
relnicd balencs ather fghts
shaet cagion
(common sipok)
LBP Insursnce Brolkemge, e 3,000,030 3,000,000 2,909,590 |LandBank of tha Philppines
1 |Akhin G Dans
1 |Cherry My T Frederics
1 |Reymeuld B Vilalusite
Jemruler Tantan
Pamela B, Felizarta
Eusebio &, Corteg
1 |Banfamnin G, Salanatin
1 |Aberta R. Moralas
[Riciky T. Bacodod
= [E_.ri-'a-_"ﬂimi R, Abuy
Relaled Parbes 2999 g9y
Customer Relaled 1]

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES

-]




. Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
signficant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under the
Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 29 and the Revised Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68 in Note 30 to the 2023 financial statements is presented for purposes of filing
with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and the Securities and Exchange Commission,
respectively, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
o]

L WY 23 B

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

ke

\

] frﬁf
MARIE FRANCES HAZEL S. ACEBEDO
Supervising Auditor

April 16, 2024




LBP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC,

Financlal Soundness Indicaiors
Yaar 2023

FIMAMNMULAL SCPLNDNY ERS

AU TY RATIOS:

CLURRENT RATIO:

QUICK RATIO:

Sl P ERILTY RA TR

DERT TO EQUITY EATIO:

ASSET TO BQUITY RATIO:

PROFITABILITY HATIONS:

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN:

RETURMN ON AVERAGE ASSETS:

RETURN (MW AVERAGE EQUITY:

2023 2022
ANDUNT RATICK ANOLNT RATID
CUIRREMNT AS51T HHT 405 20 1.78 b1H, 45k Ha - 157
CURRENT LIABILITY 408 178 463 04 9E6 374
CASH OR NEAR CASH ITERS 459,000,116 092 235637009 = LEZ1]
o ————
CURRENT LIABILTY 408 17EA63 394,986,374
NET INCOME AFTER TAK + _
DEPRFCIATION 150.884.471 0.29 256,007,104 N 0.6
TOTAL LIBBIUTES 658 979,717 39E, 304 934
TOTAL LIABILITIES 858,079,717 045 398,304 918 - (L)
TOTAL EQLITY 1,471,556, 134 1.469,276,530
TOTAL ASSET FRE LY b 1.45% LEBSGT] S0 = 1.27
TOTAL EQUITY 1471556, 134 1,469, 276 58%
Fevenue - 0065 18527678 1.00 405,816,995 = p i
Bevenus 318527678 405,816,515
MET INCONI 1860026, 089 L #51,211,B71 - 014
AVERAGE TOTAL AS5ETS 1,999,123, 690 1 A09,027 801
NET INCORME 186,026,089 s 251, 145% 353 = .18
AVERAGE EQUITY 1 470,436,362 1,390, 660,640



LBF INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
AGING OF INSURANCE /REINS UBANCE PREMILSA PAYABLE
AL OF DECEMBER 31, 20073

ALLIED INSURANCE CORPORATION 848,564 84 613,774.23 188,136 56 263,818.64 309,783.87 - 308,783.87 309,783.87
ALPHA INSURANCE & SURETY €01, INC 30754, 849,60 35,330,634.49 15,560,282 81 19,236,13653  7,629,084.75 1628,064.75 . 7,629,064.75
ASIA INSURANCE CORPORATION 7,291,644.50 35,355,582 84 22,220,758.10 1706296344  3,363,504.80 3,363,504 80 . 3,363,504.80
BENLIFE 40591,179.84 112785227711 344,832,063.86 78225697772 41,854,815.37 41,854,415.37 41,854,415.37
BETHEL INSURANCE 638663043 151308 Sedi 31,751,672.10 79,799,060.57  46,131,854.64 46,131, 454.64 6,131,454 84
ISP/ INSURANCE 1,450.45 . 1,450.49 . . . -
CMELES INSURANCE . 155,5916.62 28,644 37 3249145 54,780.90 54,790.80 . 94,780.90
CLIMES - 2,397,697.75 574,245.75 1,823,452.00 . - . .
COMMONWEALTH INSURANCE 3,161.20 $47,958.35 198,882 46 282,087.74 70,148.35 66,988.15 3,161.20 70,149.35
CHARTER 508,455 67 1,484, 307.30 3422 174 85 . 70,488 12 . 70,488 12 70,488.12
COCOGEN 589,821.87 51,401,309.43 11,636,168 47 J1000,55493  19,734,402.00 19,734,402 00 . 18,738,402.00
EMEIRE 16,851.2 2,060.32 8,040.02 18,980.01 1497162 1.437.13 13,53439 1897162
FORTUNE GENERAL INSURANCE 3,0133,842.00 23,243,540.14 13,721,047 69 10,820,122.23 1,636,212 24 1,632,540.03 327221 1,636,212 24
INTRA STRATA 11,369.21 2,074,773.01 500,901.75 §59,165.79  1,006,104.68 1,026,104 68 . 1,026,104 68
MAA §23,430.54 12,195 298 89 347471750 8,843,04895  1,800,063.08 1,900,063 08 1,800,063 08
MALAYAN INSURANCE 5§, 756,490.63 27,961,605.83 14,799,475 37 13,084,350.60 583423050 5,434,330 50 . 5,534,230 50
MEBCANTILE 2,566,416.87 1,666,217.72 1,048,205 56 2,671, 314.41 §13,004.32 45045750 62,560 §13,024.32
ORIENTAL 807,831.32 4,907,595.24 2,076,941 66 3,636,073 66 1,615.24 . 1,615.24 1,615.24
PACIFIC LINION INSURANCE 05,0015 62,145,538.95 35,727,908.18 18,498,76092  £,823,87184 8,823,871 84 . 8,673,871.84
MILESTONE INSURANCE 2,393,319.71 58,685,543 30 13,588 £33 74 3458454788 13,510,18159 13,798 698 93 114,482.86 13,910,181 58
PERLA 2,240,277.24 16,426,476.76 5,196,781 88 12,524,888 98 845,183 14 860,037.06 85,1460 545,183 14
FHILAM 45,723,891.38 . 36,576.40 113,778.95  45,069,936.04 - 4506893604  45,068,536.04
PHILIPPINE BRITISH 11,524,135.81 35,364,317.64 12,430,975.77 27,344,51188  7,112.965.90 6,586,553 36 526,412.44 7.112,965.80
PHILIPPINE CROP - 1,626,507.80 440,114 56 1,186, 753,04 . . . .
PHILIBPINES FIRST 2,447,719.78 18,265 306.£3 3,375,841 74 16,710,888 38 3,826,196 31 3,533,913 40 92,382 81 2,636,1%.31
PHILIEPINE LIEE 08,295, 16 36,675, 143.67 11,033,506 48 25,476,111.28 707 17382107 . 7282107
PHILIEPINE PHOEND, 1,496,246.92 . . . 1,456,246 92 . 1,496,246.8 1,496,246.92
PICNEER INSURANCE & SURETY CORP 18,113,06458 243,888 95552 81,077,54278 147,348,63407  23,575,84228 23,575,843.75 . 3,575,843.25
PREMIER INSURANCE 261,645.71 27,097,134.42 5,782, 516,60 18,446,380.14  7,129.88339 7,128,860.55 2284 7,129,853 39
PRUDENTIAL GLUARANTEE & ASS. CORI 8,515,636.58 22,478,633.68 6,716,924 58 23,914,168.23 363,177.45 363,177.45 . 363,177.45
STANDARD INSURANCE £80,130.32 28,374,111 81 7,583,830.52 1352451968 9,175,68193 8,175,691 93 9,175,851.83
STRONGHOLD INSURANCE €0, INC 2,229,260.61 42,726,450 81 14,685,809 36 18,570,26408  11,329557.98 11,325,557.98 11,329,557 98
STERLING INSURANCE . 8,113,776.34 1478,857.32 486751295  1,967,006.07 1,967,006.07 . 1,567,006.07
PHIL PRUGENTIAL LIFE 231,275.12 - - . 231,275.12 . 231,275.12 231,275.12
UNITED EOCONUT PLANTERS LIFE - 20,464.35 239716 18,167.18 . . .

IARALLE  LAGME1RE RS0 o gl T 1L . .

176,402 411.85 264,615,103.28 264,615,103.28

pared by: Noted by:
-i'l'-r"" ':i._.- i

SHIRLEY A. PALAPAL
Accourting Head

MARITES B RAVELD
Finandal Account Specialist 1|



LEF INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Land Bank of the FPhilippines)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

{In Philippine Peso)

Mote 2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 459,009,116 235,637,009
Receivables, net 6 225 861 504 127.149 634
Inventorias 7 452 346 361,090
Investments g9 180,129,217 23 072 T42
Other Current Assels B 21,972 818 21,266,286
Total Current Assets 887,425,202 618,486 860
Non-Current Assets
Receivables, net 6 1,588 383 1591783
Investments 2| 1.160 687 9ad 1212674872
Investment Property 10 088,316 048 316
Property and Equipmeant, net 1 21,295,395 20,759 675
Intangible Azsels 12 G842 184 B 640 853
Deferred Tax Assets 27 51245038 4 011 348
Other Non-Current Assets B 492 384 507 821
Total Non-Current Assets 1,243,150,649 1.249,184 668
Total Assets 2,130,575,851 1.867.671,528
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabiities 13 306 415,949 233,555 792
inter-Agency Payables 14 19,151,185 *8.054 268
Trust Liabilities 15 90 888,836 127.080.310
Uneamed Fees and Commission Income 16 61,341,784 0
Provisions 17 8 498,781 0998 872
Other Current Payables 18 8,881,913 5,317,132
Total Current Liabilities 498 178,463 194.!!5.3?1
Mon-Current Liabilities
Trust Liabilibes 15 74,000 75,000
Uneamed Fees and Commission Income 16 156,470,814 0
Provisions 17 4 256,440 3,332,564
Total Non-Current Liabilities 160,801,254 3,408,564
'_I:ut.a.l Liabkilitie=s - 658,979,717 458,354,938
EQUITY g
Share Capital _ T s 400,000,000 300,000,000
Retained Earnings B : ] 1,168,794 065 1.166,475.421
Accumulated Other Comprehadsive Tncome s ’ﬂﬁ - L 2,801,180 2,801,169
Total Equity \ \‘ﬁ o) 1,471,596,124 1,469,276,590

—

Total Liabilities and Euﬂf

T
——
e

2,1230,575,8051

1,867,671,528

=
The Notes on pages 9 to 58 form Tﬁéln‘ of these financral statements




LEP INSURANCE BROKERAGE, INC.
(& wholly-owred subsidiary of Land Bank of the Philippines)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

(In Philippine Peso)

O

MNote 2023 2022

Income

service and Business Income 21 316,133,396 404 857 520

Other Nr:mvnperaimg. Income 261 2,394 282 959 475

Total Income 318,527,678 405,815,995

Expensas

Personnel Services 22 (40,183,210) (45,101,822)

Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 23 {43,851,418) (32,922,724)

Financial Expenses 24 (305, 444 ) (429 434)

MNon-Lash Expenses 25 (6,680,863) (6,545, 785)

Total Expenses (91,020,935) (84,993,765)

MNet Income Before Tax 227,506,743 320,817,230

Income Tax Expense 27 (41,480 654) (69.571,876)
Net Income for the year 186,026,089 251,245,354
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Item that will not be classified to profit and loss
Remesasurement gain on retirement benefit obligation 262 0 2,801,169
Total Comprehensive Incoma 186,026 089 254 D45 523
The Notes on pages 9 to 58 form pert of these financial statements

=1
|
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